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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRBENMEEREN WL

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Unity
Investments Holdings Limited (the "Company”), | am
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2010 (the “Year"”).

FINAL RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND
The Group’s audited consolidated loss attributable to

shareholders was HK$64,961,714 for the Year (2009:
HK$100,618,027). The decrease in net loss was mainly
attributable to decrease in realised loss on disposal of its
listed available-for-sale investments which was as a result
of improvement in equity market in Hong Kong. Loss per
share was HK$1.40 (2009 as restated: HK$13.69).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2009: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Company is an investment company and the

Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 27 October 1999 pursuant to Chapter
21 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the
Year, the Group remains principally engaged in listed and
unlisted investments in Hong Kong and in other main stock
markets around the world and also in unlisted companies.

Given continuous volatile market condition, the listed
investments held for trading of the Group has suffered
and posted realised loss of HK$29,978,152 (2009:
HK$16,039,273), while the listed available-for-sale
investments reported realised loss of HK$26,066,323
(2009: HK$70,448,365). During the Year, the Board
remained focus on listed equity and unlisted debt securities
in Hong Kong. The Company keep caution in identifying
any investment opportunities to achieve medium-term or
long-term capital appreciation.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRBENMEEREN WL

With a view to keep balance of its investment portfolio,
the Board would maintain diversified investment portfolio
to cover a wide range of business sectors, including, but
not limited to, companies engaged in financial sectors,
insurance sector, consumer goods, industrial goods and
manufacturing sector, property sector, retailing and
services sector, green energy and natural resources sectors.

The classification of financial assets of the Group as at 31
December 2010 was as follows:

RTHEBRBEMAEFERR EFeK4
FRETEREEEG UWREEBZIXR
T HTPBRELEeRE  RRE B
FEM IXEnkBEER BHER -

A e

ARER-F-FET-A=+-AZ
SRAEHAMT :

Percentage of

Market the Group’s
value/ consolidated net
fair value assets value
wES HAEEEEFEE
AR{E EEFEBESH
HK$
okt
Available-for-sale investments AIEEERE 326,801,556 68.95%
Financial assets at fair value BBEREZAALBEYE
through profit or loss ZEMEE 134,647,893 28.41%
461,449,449

Details of top ten investments of the Group are set out in
note 15(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resource and Capital Structure
The Group’s asset portfolio was mainly financed by
internally generated cash resources and fund raising
activities. As at 31 December 2010, net current assets
of the Group amounted to HK$148,384,785 (20009:
HK$33,309,368) with a cash and bank balances of
HK$3,851,951 (2009: HK$6,359,142). The consolidated
net asset value per share of the Company as at 31
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRBENMEEREN WL

December 2010 was HK$1.12 (2009: HK$2.06). The
consolidated net asset value per share as at 31 December
2010 is calculated based on the net assets of the Group
of HK$473,981,496 (2009: HK$296,515,394) and
422,689,338 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at
that date (2009: 143,874,881 shares).

There was no material change in available credit facilities
when compared with the financial year ended 31
December 2009. As at 31 December 2010, the Group
did not have any unsecured, interest bearing short-term
borrowings (2009: HK$Nil). The gearing ratio of the Group
was 1.54% as at 31 December 2010 (2009: 0.86%),
which is calculated based on the Group’s total liabilities
divided by its total assets. Taking into account of the
amount of liquid assets in hand and available short-term
or margin loan facilities and there was no material capital
commitment, the Board are of the view that the Group
has sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing
operational requirements.

On 14 January 2010 and 19 February 2010, the Company
placed 28,770,000 shares and 100,000,000 shares
through placing agents to independent investors at a
placing price of HK$0.38 per placing share, net proceeds
of approximately HK$10.6 million and HK$36.1 million
respectively was received. The Company also completed
two rights issues on two for one basis at an issue price of
HK$0.15 each on 18 May 2010 and eight for one basis
at an issue price of HK$0.36 each on 23 December 2010
which resulted in issue of 569,279,762 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each with net proceeds of approximately
HK$81.55 million and 375,723,856 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each with net proceeds of approximately
HK$129.57 million respectively. The total net proceeds
from the placements and the rights issues were used for
listed securities investments and general working capital of
the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRBENMEEREN WL

On 24 September 2010, a special resolution was passed by
the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company to approve capital reorganisation including
consolidation of every twenty issued shares of HK$0.10
each into one consolidated share of HK$2.00 each;
reduction in each issued paid-up consolidated share of
HK$2.00 each to HK$0.01 each so as to form an adjusted
share of HK$0.01 each; and sub-division of each of the
authorised but unissued share of HK$0.10 each into ten
adjusted shares of HK$0.01 each. The capital reduction
was approved by the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands
on 26 November 2010 and the capital reorganisation
became effective on 1 December 2010, pursuant to which
an aggregate credit amount of HK$93,461,309 arisen was
utilised to set-off against the accumulated losses of the
Company. The authorised share capital of the Company
became HK$2,000,000,000 consisting of 200,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Charge of Assets

Details of charge of assets and margin facilities of the
Group as of 31 December 2010 are set out in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities of the Company as of 31 December
2010 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

As at 31 December 2010, the majority of the Group's
investments were either denominated in Hong Kong dollars
or Singapore dollars. The Group considers its exposure to
foreign exchange risk was not significant, therefore, no
financial instruments was made to hedge such exposures.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRBENMEEREN WL

PROSPECTS

Global credit and liquidity conditions have improved
significantly in the second half of 2010 and although it is
likely that there will be financial policy tightening in the
upcoming year of 2011. In China, the improvement in
the prospects of a GDP growth of 10.3% in 2010-11, up
1.1 percentage points from 2009. It is likely to enhance
savings and provide domestic liquidity at reasonable cost
for the companies on CAPEX planning. We do expect a
gradual contraction of policy induced liquidity in the future
as concerns relating to price pressures and asset bubbles
replace concerns about growth.

The economic outlook for the region looks promising and
while there may be concerns around the slow pace of
global recovery and inflation at home, there is unanimity in
the view that we are poised at an exciting juncture. This is
a good time for the Company to reposition itself and it will
provide an impetus for overall economic growth. The Board
is confident that the Company will be able to capitalise on
these opportunities and propel itself into the next level.

The Board will continue to look for appropriate investment
opportunities to expand and diversify its portfolio, with
continuing special consideration towards the challenges of
the global economy. In addition, the Board will consider
fundraising to strengthen its asset base as and when the
opportunity arises.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had ten employees,

including three executive directors, three independent non-
executive directors and four staff. They are remunerated
based on their performance, working experience and
prevailing market standards. Total staff costs paid for the
Year amounted to HK$3,132,054 (2009: HK$2,920,045)
and there has been no significant change in the Group's
remuneration policy.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRBENMEEREN WL

Comprehensive disclosure of directors’ emoluments
pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is set out in note 10(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express
our appreciation to the staff and management team of the
Group for their contribution during the Year and also to
give our sincere gratitude to all our shareholders for their
continuous support.

By order of the Board
Unity Investments Holdings Limited
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KITCHELL Osman Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 February 2011
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Biographical Details of Directors
= S{EANERFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin (“Mr. KITCHELL"), aged 46,

a Canadian citizen, completed his high-school education
in Hong Kong and undergraduate studies in Canada.
Mr. KITCHELL had obtained a honourary diploma from
Pickering College in Canada. Mr. KITCHELL studied
Economics in the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr.
KITCHELL is a veteran investor mainly in the Hong Kong
equity markets with 15 years experience. Mr. KITCHELL
had been an investor managing a private family fund.
Mr. KITCHELL was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 10 January 2005 and also appointed as
the chief executive officer of the Company on 17 January
2006. Mr. KITCHELL was elected as chairman of the
Company on 16 January 2008.

Ms. DAVIS Angela Hendricks (“Ms. DAVIS”), aged 44,
holds Master of Laws Degree, Juris Doctor, cum laude,
and a Bachelor of Science Degree, cum laude. Ms. DAVIS
is a member of the Kentucky Bar Association. Ms. DAVIS
has extensive experience as a commercial litigator in the
Louisville, Kentucky offices of Stites & Harbison, and
as a deal lawyer in the New York and Beijing offices of
Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison. Ms. DAVIS was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 18
June 2008.

Ms. CHOI Ka Wing (“Ms. CHOI"), aged 28, completed
her high school education in Hong Kong and had
further her studies at the Perth Institute of Business
and Technology in Perth, Australia. Ms. CHOI worked in
customer services in the catering division of a 5 star hotel
in Hong Kong for over one year and gained experience
in the food and beverage and entertainment businesses.
Ms. CHOI was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 9 October 2006.
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Biographical Details of Directors
= S{EANERFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen (“Mr. CHUNG"), aged

54, obtained a Bachelor Degree of Science from the
Wharton School of Business, University of Pennsylvania,
United States of America. Mr. CHUNG is one of the
founders and executive directors of SDM Dental Inc., an
investment holding company which operating dental clinics
in The People Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr. CHUNG
has extensive experience in investments in the PRC. Mr.
CHUNG is currently also an independent non-executive
director of Computech Holdings Limited (stock code:
8081), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. CHUNG was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 16
March 2004.

Mr. TSANG Wing Ki (“Mr. TSANG"), aged 49, obtained
a master’'s degree in professional accounting from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. TSANG is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. TSANG has more than 20 years of
experience in auditing and financial accounting. Mr.
TSANG is currently an executive director of Noble Jewelry
Holdings Limited (stock code: 475), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. TSANG was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 23 September 2004.
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Biographical Details of Directors
= S{EANERFE

Mr. NGAI Wai Kin (“Mr. NGAI"), aged 46, holds a
Professional Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic, a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) degree from
the University of London and a Master of Laws degree
from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. NGAI is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia
respectively. Mr. NGAI is also a barrister in England and
Wales and a barrister in Hong Kong. Mr. NGAI has over 20
years of experience in finance and accounting field in both
Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. NGAI was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 23
July 2008.
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Directors’ Report
EEeWmE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
pleased to present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2010 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Group are investment

holding. During the Year, the Group was principally
engaged in listed and unlisted investments in Hong Kong
and in other main stock markets around the world and also
in unlisted companies.

The segment information of the Group for the Year is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The Group's loss for the Year and the state of affairs of the

Company and the Group as at 31 December 2010 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 33 to
103.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the
Year (2009: Nil) and the Board does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the Year (2009: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities

of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements, with any restated
or reclassified figure if applicable, is set out on page 104.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements during the Year in share capital

of the Company are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the Year, the Group made charitable contributions

totally HK$30,000.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE

CONTRACT
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to

the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin*
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. DAVIS Angela Hendricks
Ms. CHOI Ka Wing

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen*

Mr. TSANG Wing Ki*#

Mr. NGAI Wai Kin*#

*  Member of Audit Committee
#*  Member of Remuneration Committee

Biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 10 to
12.

In accordance with Article 157 of the articles of association
of the Company, Ms. CHOI Ka Wing and Mr. TSANG Wing
Ki shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 21 to 29.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE

HIGHEST-PAID EMPLOYEES
Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors and the

five highest-paid employees of the Group during the Year
are set out in note 10(a) and 10(b) to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF

THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short

positions of Directors and the chief executives of the
Company and/or any of their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or other associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which are required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange was as
follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company REAQNTRZERZHEE
Percentage of
issued share
Number of capital of
Name of Director Capacity shares held the Company
EARRF
B2 B®ITRA
EEpA &4 FEsRoBE Bt
CHOI Ka Wing Beneficial owner 1,253,250 0.30%
HHKA EnEEA
DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR ESWERDBESZ 2ER

DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate, neither the Directors nor any
of their spouses or children under age of eighteen, had any
right to subscribe for the securities or debt securities of the
Company or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party to and in which Directors had a material
interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Details of new share option scheme adopted by the

Company on 2 May 2003 and movements in share option
scheme of the Company during the Year are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME
The Group provides a defined contribution retirement

scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong to all staff. Under
the Scheme, employer and employees are each required
to make contributions to the Scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000 and contributions to the
Scheme vested immediately.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S SHARE

During the Year, the Company repurchased the following
shares on the Stock Exchange and the title documents
of the respective repurchased shares were cancelled and
destroyed accordingly.

EREE
REERERERSNEQES S KO
ﬁ%ﬁélhﬁ%m1MLWJJﬂn
T8l - REZE  BEEXREESEE
ZEEBBWAZ5%EZTENERH
AW A LRS A & E%20,0007T * M
M ZETEIVEL 2 BN ER B -

BE HEIFEDAQARH

EA$¢FEW EANYNECTYS e ig A CE )i
- AR RS P EE IR 12 2 PR B R XX E A
%uﬁﬁ&%ﬂf)

Number of
shares Price per share Total
Date of repurchase repurchased Highest  Lowest consideration
BRER

B mE A Frig = R4 # B RS K& HBRE
HK$ HK$ HK$

B B B

10 August 2010 —ZE-TF)\A+H 3 0.052 0.052 0.16

Save as disclosed herein, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company during the Year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
As at 31 December 2010, no person (other than the

Director or Chief Executive of the Company) had notified
the Company of interests or short position in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company, being 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company, as
recorded in the register of interests in shares or underlying
shares of the Company required to be maintained pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the Year, as set out in the circular of the Company

dated 7 October 2009, the Group carried out the following
continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Master
Transactions Agreement dated 16 September 2009 entered
into between the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) and Hennabun Capital Group Limited (for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) (“HCG Group”)
which was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company on 5 November 2009 and are subject to the
reporting requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing
Rules. Details of the continuing connected transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2010 were summarised
herein below:

BEREXS
FR-BO_TETANFTACANBRZA
P AREBBRBEARARA (REAXAH K
H KB Q&) BEHennabun Capital Group
Limited (KX A & R E &2 7)) ([HCG
EEDR-_ZETNAFNLAT AL
ERGHBEETTINFEBRERS - B
BEBEISER _TETAE+—AHA
EARNBBY R A - WBBET LR
AIZE14A 4616 Z MR TE - RBE T —
TET A=+ ALEFEZHERER
S A BERanT

Nature of transactions Amount
REME |
HK$'000
BT
Financial services provided by HCG Group to the Group
(including brokerage, investment management services,
financial advisory services and interest on margin financing) (Note 1) 3,912
HHCGEERAEBERHEMBRE (R ELL  RESERS -
CRERRERRIBZEEZNE) (HiF1)
Margin facilities provided by HCG Group to the Group
(margin trading and financing facilities including interest
on margin financing) (Note 2) 16,527

HHCGRBRARBREHRRESEER

(REERHLBEEERS  BRRISLEEZMNE) (HZ2)

Notes:

1. The investment management services refer to the
investment management services provided by CU
Investment Management Limited (“CUIM") under
investment management agreement at a flat rate of
HK$60,000 per month. Pursuant to Rule 21.13 of the
Listing Rules, the investment manager is defined as
connected person of the Company. On 23 December
2010, the Company and CUIM renewed the investment
management agreement under the same terms for another
year up to 31 December 2011.
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The amounts payable for margin facilities are determined
on a revolving facility basis and refer to the maximum
amount which may be outstanding at any given time.

The continuing connected transactions which have
been carried out in 2010 and disclosed above does not
constitute related party transactions pursuant to the
requirements under HKAS 24: Related Party Disclosures.

The Board engaged Mazars CPA Limited, the auditor of
the Company, to perform certain agreed upon procedures
in respect of the continuing connected transactions to
assist the Board to evaluate if the continuing connected
transactions are in accordance with the requirements of
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. Mazars CPA Limited
has reported their actual findings on these procedures to
the Board. The independent non-executive directors of
the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available
from (as appropriate) independent third parties and
on arm’s length basis;

in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole; and

without exceeding the relevant annual caps as
disclosed in circular of the Company dated 7
October 2009.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
articles of association of the Company although there are
no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the

Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficiency public float in compliance with
Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee of the Company as at the date

of this annual report comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen,
Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr. NGAI Wai Kin.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls, auditing and
financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited consolidated financial statements and continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2010.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars
CPA Limited as auditor of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Unity Investments Holdings Limited
E—REEZRERAA

KITCHELL Osman Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 February 2011
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board of the Company is dedicated to an ongoing

enhancement of effective and efficient corporate
governance practice in compliance with the principles
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practice
(the “Code Provision”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2010 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company, in
the opinion of the Board, has complied with the Code
Provision with deviations from Code Provision A.2.1 and
A.4.1 as summarised below.

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. KITCHELL
Osman Bin was elected as chairman of the Company on
16 January 2008 and took the role of chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. KITCHELL Osman
Bin possesses essential leadership skills and has extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board is
of the view that currently vesting the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allows for more effective and efficient business planning
and decisions as well as execution of long term business
strategies.

TRERER
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Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and
be subject to re-election. The Company has not fixed
the term of appointment for non-executive directors,
which constitutes a deviation from Code Provision A.4.1.
However, all non-executive directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
pursuant to Article 157 of the articles of association of the
Company which was amended on 13 September 2005.
As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting those in the
Code Provision.

The current corporate governance practices of the
Company will be reviewed and updated in a timely manner
in order to comply with the requirements of the Code
Provision.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors. The Model Code was sent to each Director
on his/her appointment and any update to the Model
Code released by the Stock Exchange was also sent to all
existing Directors. Upon specific enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code for the
Year.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

(1)

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for not only limited to
formulate the corporate strategic and set-up the
business development plans, but also to monitor
and supervise the performance of the management
and review the effectiveness of internal control
including the scope of financial, operational,
compliance and risk management and preparing
and approving financial statements of the Group.
Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of
their responsibilities to shareholders, for the manner
in which business and affairs of the Company are
managed and operated. All Directors have grave
concern, sufficient time and attention to all the
significant issues and affairs of the Group. The day-
to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the executive board
members. Each executive director of the Company
has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience
to hold his/her position in order to ensure that his/
her fiduciary duties can be carried out in an effective
and efficient manner. The Board has also established
two board committees, namely Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee (the “Board
Committees”) for overseeing particular of the
Company’s affairs. The composition and functions
of each committee are described below. These
committees have specific functions and authority to
examine issues and report to the Board with their
recommendations (if appropriate) for the decision of
the Board.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary in respect of compliance
with all applicable rules and regulations. Any
Directors may request independent professional
advice where necessary at the expenses of the
Company in discharging of their duties of the
Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises three executive directors, namely, Mr.
KITCHELL Osman Bin (Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer), Ms. DAVIS Angela Hendricks and Ms. CHOI
Ka Wing; and three independent non-executive
directors (“INED(s)"), namely Mr. CHUNG Kong Fei,
Stephen, Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr. NGAI Wai
Kin. Two of INEDs, namely Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and
Mr. NGAI Wai Kin, have appropriate professional
accounting experience and expertise. The Board
membership is covered by recognised professional
legal, accounting and widely experienced personnel
so as to bring in valuable contribution and different
professional advice for the development of the
Company. None of the Directors have, in any
respect, related to each other in any circumstances.

The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from three INEDs
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and
concluded that they are independent under the
definition of the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 10 to 12.
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P AN -2 INVANE"
TEERMSE
(2) Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(3)

The chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company is Mr. KITCHELL Osman Bin which
constitutes a deviation from the Code Provision
A.2.1.

The chairman is responsible for the management of
the Board and external corporate communication.
The chief executive officer is responsible for the day-
to-day operation, monitoring performance of the
management and effectiveness of the Company,
including but not limited to, the implementation of
the overall strategy of the Company.

Meeting Records

The Directors convened seven full Board meetings
during the Year. In addition, executive Board
meetings are convened when necessary to deal
with day-to-day matters that require the Board's
prompt decision, and are thus usually only executive
directors would be attended. Attendance records of
the Board meetings and the meetings of the Board
Committees during the Year were set out below:

(2)

(3)

FERITHRAR

KITCHELL Osman Bin%t 4 H{E AR Q&
FRERITBUBR B - Mt BRIRBEST
BIMESCEBA 211K -

TRAEEEg2EENYEINEA -
THAHMNBEREERE E8EALQ
AZEEBRARYE  BHREIR
RMITARE 2 BERE -

BEL R
EERAFERALtAEEESS S
FZoltN EFENERMEREH
HWITEFEEH UWRBAEFEEN
RELRAEZAEEE  ALBEHES
FMAARTESLE NAFE
N EESERIREZTZTESETRL
HELEsIT

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTEENH
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Name ®E Exg EiEEg FMzEES
Executive Directors HTES
KITCHELL Osman Bin KITCHELL Osman Bin 717 - 11
DAVIS Angela Hendricks DAVIS Angela Hendricks 717 - -
CHOI Ka Wing BRAB 717 - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen =R 717 212 -
TSANG Wing Ki B 717 22 1/1
NGAI Wai Kin mER 717 22 1/1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee of the Company was established

in January 2003. As at the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
CHUNG Kong Fei, Stephen, Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr.
NGAI Wai Kin.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include but are
not limited to the following:

o consider and review the appointment, resignation
and removal of external auditors and their fees and
supervision on whether any non-auditing services
has been provided by external auditor and giving of
advice to the Board on employment of auditor

o liaise with the Board and discuss with the external
auditors issues of significance during the audit of the
Group

o review the interim and annual results of the Group

o review the report from the external auditors in

relation to continuing connected transactions

o discuss and monitor with the management on
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are updated
and consistent with the terms set out in the Code Provision
from time to time. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access
to independent professional advice if considers necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report
TrEREBWHE

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Year
to review the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 December 2009 and the interim report for the six
months period ended 30 June 2010, which opined that
the preparations of the two sets of financial statements
were in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and practices. Statistics of attendance of the
Audit Committee meetings are disclosed under the section
headed “Meeting Records” above.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee of the Company was

established in September 2005 and the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee is in compliance with the
Code Provision B.1.3. As at the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. KTICHELL Osman Bin and two INEDs,
namely Mr. TSANG Wing Ki and Mr. NGAI Wai Kin.
One meeting was held during the Year to review and to
approve the remuneration package of all directors of the
Company. No Director, or any of his/her associates, and
executive is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
Statistics of attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meeting is disclosed under the section headed “Meeting
Records” above.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
Nomination committee has not been set up to deal with

the nomination of Director. The Board, however, will
review the profile of each Director and nominate directors
(if necessary) to ensure that the composition of the Board
meets the general requirements of the Listing Rules and
the Board is capable to fulfill its obligations in terms of
fiduciary duties and can act in the best interest of the
members of the Company.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s system
of internal controls and ensure sound and effective internal
controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
assets of the Group, to maintain proper accounting records
for the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication, and to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of the
Group’s internal control is to provide reasonable assurance
against material statement or loss and achievement of
the Group’s objective. During the Year, the Board had
reviewed and ensured the internal control process had
been properly carried out in marking the investment
decision and adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting were maintained properly. The Board considers
that the Group’s internal control system covers all material
controls, including financial, operational, risk management
functions and compliance with relevant regulations.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reporting responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor
are set out on pages 30 to 31 of this annual report.
Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give true and fair view for the year ended 31 December
2010 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Directors
also acknowledge that the publication of the financial
statements should be distributed to the shareholders of the
Company in a timely manner.
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TrEREBWHE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Mazars CPA Limited was re-appointed as the auditor of

the Group at the annual general meeting held on 28
June 2010 and the Directors were authorised to fix their
remuneration. The remuneration paid/payable to Mazars
CPA Limited in respect of audit for the Year and non-audit
services during the Year were HK$380,000 and HK$24,500
respectively (2009: HK$365,000 and HK$26,000
respectively).

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND
COMMUNICATION

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency that Company’s website (www.unity913.com)
has been established as a means to communicate with
shareholders and investors.

The Board aim to ensure that its shareholders are kept
well informed of key business imperatives in a timely
and accurate manner. Extensive information about the
Company’s activities was provided in its annual report,
interim report, announcements and circulars.

The Board convened annual general meeting and other
general meetings as the principal channel to meet and
communicate with the shareholders of the Company.
Individual resolution in response to specific issues
(including proposals related to capital reorganisation and
rights issue) had been put forward to shareholders of
the Company to consider at the general meetings during
the Year. In each general meeting held during the Year,
the Board had ensured that Tricor Tengis Limited, the
Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, acted as
scrutineer in each occasion for all vote cast at the general
meeting.

The chairman of the Company and the chairman of the
Board Committees were available to answer questions at
the annual general meeting held on 28 June 2010 and
extraordinary general meetings held on 26 April 2010 and
24 September 2010 respectively.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y& L 1z BUAD R

MAZARS

To the shareholders of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Unity Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out
on pages 33 to 103, which comprise the consolidated
and the Company's statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2010, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income,
cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

the consolidated statement of

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements

give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2010
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 February 2011

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AT EWEER

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Bix —E—FFL _H=1—HItFE
2010 2009
—E2-%F —ZETNF
Note HK$ HK$
Wit 7 ok

Turnover EXR 4 (29,978,152) (16,039,273)
Other revenue it s 4 2,851,091 4,904,925
Changes in fair value of listed equity $ETFM EERENEY

investments classified under MEEREZANEED

investments held for trading 6,338,759 2,849,767
Changes in fair value of unlisted debt BRBERAAEIANZ

investments designated as at fair value FIMEBRE

through profit or loss AREEE 10,000,000 -
Reversal of impairment on unlisted debt $ETJ§T%&%&L§%¥§Z

investments classified under available- FLIMEBREZ

for-sale investments A {ER D - 5,011,515
Impairment of unlisted equity investments BEAHEHERENHL

classified under available-for-sale investments ~ 3F F T iE# 1% & 2 A {E (8,530,916) (4,401,751)
Impairment of listed equity investments BRIKLEREN L

classified under available-for-sale investments ~ EMEEBREZHE (8,765,700) -
Realised loss on disposal of listed equity ERBUHRLIERENEL

investments classified under available- LHREREY

for-sale investments BERER (26,066,323) (70,448,365)
Gain on redemption of unlisted debt BEAHHNEREN R

investments classified under available- EMEBREZ

for-sale investments B[ Hﬂlﬁ?& 2,000,000
Other operating expenses %W“‘ 7 (11,635,463) (21,206 724)
Finance costs BEKA 6 (1,175,010) (1,288,121)
Loss before tax BREAER 6 (64,961,714) (100,618,027)
Income tax expense MER % 7 - -
Loss for the year attributable to ANREEREA

equity holders of the Company EtEREE 8 (64,961,714) (100,618,027)
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale RHEEREZARER

investments ‘ o (65,407,022) 84,660,808
Realisation upon disposal of HEARHERERER

available-for-sale investments ) 26,066,323 70,448,365
Transfer to profit or loss upon impairment Rt HERELRAER

of available-for-sale investments BREZER 8,765,700 -
Other comprehensive (loss) income for FREM2E(BR) WA KR

the year, before and net of tax effects NhRHBEEE (30,574,999) 155,109,173
Total comprehensive (loss) income for ENRERBEABEFRE

the year attributable to equity holders 2E (B8) KA

of the Company (95,536,713) 54,491,146

(Restated)
(HE5))

Loss per share - Basic and Diluted SREE-EAREHE 9 (1.40) (13.69)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR

As at 31 December 2010

RIBE—FF+_H=+—H

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
Note HK$ HK$
Kt i B
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WEE&RE 11(a) 2,395,155 4,408,327
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 13 323,201,556 258,797,699
325,596,711 263,206,026
Current assets RBEE
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 13 3,600,000 -
Financial assets at fair value FHRBRIZ AR EY R
through profit or loss LEREE 14 134,647,893 29,148,632
Other receivables H b & W 5k 16 13,699,205 377,428
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFEMRE 3,851,951 6,359,142
155,799,049 35,885,202
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals Hi B R ERTE R 7,414,264 2,575,834
Net current assets REBEEFE 148,384,785 33,309,368
NET ASSETS EEFE 473,981,496 296,515,394
Capital and reserves RA R # %
Share capital &N 17 4,226,893 14,387,488
Reserves fF# 469,754,603 282,127,906
TOTAL EQUITY BmER 473,981,496 296,515,394
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of prmEzen-—ZE=——F-F-+FH

Directors on 25 February 2011.

KITCHELL Osman Bin
Director

EF
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Statement of Financial Position

B H5 AR R

As at 31 December 2010

RZIBE-—ZFF+_HA=+4+—H

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Note HK$ HK$
Kt i B
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WEE&RE 11(b) 633,656 836,686
Interests in subsidiaries NI PE=R/NIC] o = X5 12 456,631,113 278,759,962
457,264,769 279,596,648
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value BREBEREARE
through profit or loss TR e MEE 14 13,156,000 10,807,830
Other receivables H b FE YUK 16 335,179 365,371
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFRIRS 3,728,193 6,031,585
17,219,372 17,204,786
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals HMENRKRESTER 502,621 286,025
Net current assets RBEEFE 16,716,751 16,918,761
NET ASSETS EEFRE 473,981,520 296,515,409
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital [N 17 4,226,893 14,387,488
Reserves 7 1 18 469,754,627 282,127,921
TOTAL EQUITY B 473,981,520 296,515,409

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 25 February 2011.

KITCHELL Osman Bin
Director

EF

ERBEEEEN T ——F _HA=-_+HH
He A R 3% R T1) 2 o

CHOI Ka Wing

ERHA
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

l\\/T\/\EE \/ ;ﬁ%$&i§

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE_FE—FFL _HA=1—HIFEF
2010 2009
—E-8F —ZETNF
Note HK$ HK$
B &t i ok

OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Cash used in operations LIEBMARS 22 (136,677,705)  (34,275,362)
Interest paid SENEES) (1,175,010) (171,838)
Net cash used in operating REXKA

activities REEH (137,852,715)  (34,447,200)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXH
Acquisition of property, plant WM - BB R&E

and equipment (175,034) (2,448,808)
Acquisition of available-for-sale WIEAHEERE

investments (426,372,661) (271,334,220)
Proceeds from disposal of & Al it ﬁg&ﬁ

available-for-sale investments FTiS 3T 261,430,866 241,244,706
Proceed from redemption of f& g ;‘EJ: m BEFEKE

unlisted debt investment PR1S 18 25,000,000 -~
Proceed from disposal of a HEMBA

subsidiary Fﬁ?%?ﬁ( 23 - 1,960,000
Dividends received Fr 15 B 2,816,555 4,862,346
Interest received ﬁﬁ?zafﬂ 30,611 42,306
Net cash used in investing REXKFHA

activities HeHE (137,269,663) (25,673,670)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7l & 5 B
Proceeds from rights issue H AR B 13 5018 220,652,551 51,215,511
Proceeds from placement of shares B & R4 19 208 48,932,600 23,900,000
Proceeds from shares issued RIZ R AR 5T 8l 3%

under share option scheme W& A5 Fir 15 5018 13,576,900 -
Share issue expenses BOIROZEX (10,546,864) (3,381,087)
Share repurchase A - (1)
New interest-bearing borrowings &t B &%

raised - 15,000,000
Repayment of interest-bearing EETEER

borrowings - (24,500,000)
Net cash from financing RMESEEE

activities RE&FE 272,615,187 62,234,423
Net (decrease) increase incash BERBEEZEEY=Z

and cash equivalents (R 2) EnF 5 (2,507,191) 2,113,553
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNZzRERELSE

beginning of year By 6,359,142 4,245,589
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZREREEE

year end, represented by B (2 ART

bank balances and cash FERRE) 3,851,951 6,359,142
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
el REREER

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE —FT—FFEF A=+ —HIFZF
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRARREEARLE
Convertible Share  Investment Capital
Share Share notes option revaluation  reduction Accumulated Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total
g RE
e RGBEE REERE BRERE  EREE HERAEE  RHEE BReH At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK§ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
A% A% ik it L % L s A%
At 1 January 2010 RZ5-F5-5-H 14,387,488 269,446,763 - - 35,611,442 346,585,489 (369,515,788) 282,127,906 296,515,394
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (64961,714) (64.961,714) (64,961,714)
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments gL ERE 2 A4 EEY - - - - (65,407,022) - - (65407,022) (65,407,022)
Realisation upon disposal of HETRLERERER
available-for-sale investments - - - - 26,066,323 - - 26066323  26,066323
Transfer to profit or loss upon impaiment of RAGHERE LR AER
avallable-for-sale investments ] - - - - 8,765,700 - - 8765700 8,765,700
Other comprehensive loss for the year ERAMZEEE - - - - (30,574,999) - - (30,574,999 (30,574,999)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERREFEAR - - - - (30,574,999) - (64961,714) (95,536,713) (95,536,713)
Issue of shares under placements BERERTRA 12,877,000 36,055,600 - - - - - 36,055,600 48,932,600
Issue of shares under share option scheme REEREHEORA 9738500 3,838,400 - - - - - 3838400 13576900
Equity-settled share-based payment DA%H%EW&'%%%@ZH% - - - 387628 - - - 387628 387,628
Transfer to share premium on exercise of REREETFREZZRNEE
share option - 387,628 - (387,628) - - - - -
Issue of shares under rights issues BEERETRR 60,685,214 159,967,337 - - - - - 159,967,337 220,652,551
Share issue expenses BIRBZAX - (10,546,864) - - - - - (10,546,864) (10,546,864)
Creation of capital reduction reserve pursuant to RERFEEELZHIRREER
the capital reorganisation (93,461,309) - - - - 93461309 - 93461309 -
Capital reduction reserve set off against RERAEAL AR
accumulated losses pursuant to the hARREHEHER
capital reorganisation - - - - - (93461,309) 93,461,309 - -
Total transactions with owners AEEARAEE (10,160,595) 189,702,101 - - - - 93461309 283,163,410 273,002,815
At 31 December 2010 RZE-BE+-A=t-8 4,226,893 459,148,864 - - 5,036,443 346,585,489 (341,016,193) 469,754,603 473,981,496
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-F-H 37,579,147 264,500,318 22,668,782 - (119,497,731) 346,585,489 (398,385,153) 115,871,705 153,450,852
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (100,618,027) (100,618,027) (100,618,027)
Changes in fair value of avallable-for-sale investments A& HEREZ DA EES - - - - 84,660,808 - - 84,660,808 84,660,808
Realisation upon disposal of HETRNERERE
avallable-for-sale investments - - - - 70,448,365 - - 70,448,365 70,448,365
Other comprehensive loss for the year EREMZAGE - - - - 155,109,173 - - 155,109,173 155,109,173
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZENALE - - - - 155,109,173 - (100,618,027) 54,491,146 54,491,146
Conversion of convertible notes ERTARRR 31180223 8327532 (22,668,782) - - - - (14341250 16,838,973
Issue of shares under placement BREEERIKN 23,900,000 - - - - - - - 23,900,000
Share repurchase BE R (1) - - - - - - - (1)
Share issue expenses BIRRzRX - (3,381,087) - - - - - (3,381,087)  (3,381,087)
Issue of shares under right issue RE#REARS 51,215,511 - - - - - - - 5121550
Creation of capital reduction reserve pursuant REBRREAEEZHARTER
to the capital reorganisation (129,487,392 - - - - 129,487,392 - 129,487,392 -
Capital reduction reserve set off against RERFEENARREER
accumulated losses pursuant to the BHZHEE
capital reorganisation - - - - - (129,487,392) 129,487,392 - -
Total transactions with owners AREARFEE (23,191,659) 4,946,445  (22,668,782) - - - 129487392 111,765,055  88,573,3%
At 31 December 2009 RZEENFTZA=1+-H 14,387,488 269,446,763 B - 35,611,442 346,585,489 (369,515,788) 282,127,906 296,515,394
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Unity Investments Holdings Limited was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address
of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information of this annual report. The
principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and principal activities of its subsidiaries
are detailed in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements also comply with applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2009 consolidated financial
statements. The adoption of the new/revised
HKFRSs that are effective from the current year had
no significant effects on the Group’s results and
financial position for the current and prior years.
A summary of the principal accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis Of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements is historical
cost, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale investments in
listed securities and debt securities and share-based
payments, which are measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and all of
its subsidiaries as at 31 December each year. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting year as that of the Company
using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceased.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE T FFL _H="1—HIFFEF
2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged
to the profit or loss during the year in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives
from the date on which they are available for
use and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method, at
the annual rate of 33-1/3%. Where parts of an item
of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset is included in profit or
loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date
basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group'’s
contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or when the Group transfers
the financial asset and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset. A financial liability is
derecognised only when the liability is extinguished,
that is, when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. They are carried at fair
value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are (i) acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; (i) part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives that are
not financial guarantee contracts or designated and
effective hedging instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on a different basis; or (ii) they are
part of a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities that are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) they
contain embedded derivatives that would need to be
separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

The Group uses the Binomial Tree Pricing Model to
determine the fair value of debt investments that are
not traded in an active market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including other receivables
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are not held for trading.
They are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, except where receivables
are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would
be insignificant. In such case, the receivables are
stated at cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition over the year to maturity.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or through the amortisation process are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured
at fair value with changes in value recognised as a
separate component of equity until the assets are
sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the
assets are determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
equity is transferred to the profit or loss. Available-
for-sale equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at
cost less impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
When a debt instrument with equity conversion
option is classified as available-for-sale financial
asset, the equity conversion option (the embedded
derivative) is separated. The amount paid for the
bond is split between the debt instrument without
the conversion option and the equity conversion
option. Changes in the fair value of the equity
conversion option are recognised in profit or loss
unless the option is part of a cash flow hedging
relationship.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether there is objective evidence that
financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are impaired. The impairment
loss of financial assets carried at amortised cost is
measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. Such impairment loss
is reversed in subsequent periods through profit
or loss when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any previously recognised impairment loss, is
transferred from equity to profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
fair value of available-for-sale equity instrument
after recognition of impairment loss is recognised in
equity. Reversal of impairment loss of available-for-
sale debt instruments are reversed through the profit
or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the profit or
loss.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include other
payables. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably and on the following bases.

Net income from sale of investments held for trading
are recognised on the transaction date when the
relevant sale and purchase contract is entered into.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on
a time-apportionment basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable.

Foreign currency translation

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are recognised in profit or loss except for those
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or losses
are also recognised directly in equity.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews internal and external sources of information
to determine whether its property, plant and
equipment have suffered an impairment loss or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
cost to sell and value in use. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately.

TEEFTREE)

SINERE (F)
INERZHRRHBHERZE XK
BERMEEE REERFERIH R
REREXMBIUINESEZEE
BERBEMELEZINEREBENE
SRR EFRERQABIR
ZIEERBEL ZIMNEW S KB
BREBGZANER  EERRENFE
BEBELERI  BEWENE
BEEENEEER BB T K
BHERTERRNEaER

FERMEERME

7N 5% B 1A 18 BR R R A R I A AT
MEINDER - WETEHDE - BF
LEFHeEGE R LR BMERBERE
FICERZBESRETEFER
AIREE AR D o fin 3R _EAE ] 15
N AEBERRBEEZQAAER
HEKRARAEREEZRRE K
AEEZAWEE®E - M T Er
BERIEEZAWE S AEEA
SEFABIRRRSR 2 &K/
RIEE (BNBREIR & B A7) Z AU [l
T e

MARBEGBFRBEEEXRNRE
BUusrRESBmEREER®TE "
AIZBREEXRBREEMZRE
BEAREEHEATKREEE - BERS
B AR R/ -

AE—HREERBMRAR 2010 F8 47



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset is capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme are recognised
as an expense in the profit or loss as incurred
and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independent administered
fund.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, and
other eligible participants receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby these parties rendered services in exchange
for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions is measured by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted is recognised
as in profit or loss with a corresponding increase in
a reserve within equity. The fair value is determined
using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model,
taking into account the terms and conditions of
the transactions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company (“market
conditions”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the years in which the vesting conditions
are to be fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevant grantees become fully entitled to the
award (“vesting date”). During the vesting period,
the number of share options that is expected to
vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
the review, with a corresponding adjustment to the
reserve within equity.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of each
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises
from initial recognition of goodwill; or other asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.

50 ANNUAL REPORT 2010  Unity Investments Holdings Limited

TEEFTREE)

URDBER ZNRKES (F)
B EXE (#F)
NEmERER S KA ERREZ
MR B BN — G 1A 55 JB R 1R 78 T 2 K
ZEEARR EEZHBEREZM@E
FREZEHEARIL - REBHA -
BMERREBCBREHRES TN
BE - HBEFECERRALA
BEERZEAABRRNEEFAZIE
BmRMG G RSB E
AR R o

Bi1E

BTGB R DIRIEANFERE XA
PR ER T ST R AR IR B R
VRN ERFRERFSEHKAK
HERIHEFTE -

ETEHMBLEAABEL LEESR
BEZHERERNM BRI EEE
MERERBRAERKE 2B ER
MEZRELBEEH AN WEXS
TERERBE AHMEEXA
BERTEL ZELERIR (B EHER
5N RR B EZE S @K

ERTGEMNIER - T SHERE
FEFLIA o

ERERBEENMNEERBRREH
BREREDERIAHE R R X
EBBEG  HBHERNBEHE
EERNAEEERE I HERTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re B HRARN

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE—F—

FE A= AILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Related parties/connected parties
A party is related to the Group if:

(a)

directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the
Group; or has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or
has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a joint venture in which the Group
is a venturer;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of
any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or
for which significant voting power in such
entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of the Group,
or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties/connected parties (Continued)

In addition, transactions with connected parties as
defined under the Listing Rules are disclosed in the
Directors’ Report of this annual report.

Critical accounting estimates and judgement
Estimates and assumptions concerning the future
and judgements are made by the management in the
preparation of the financial statements. They affect
the application of the Group's accounting policies,
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed
on an on-going basis and are based on experience
and relevant factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of
revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments
For available-for-sale investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in fair value below cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
Judgement is required when determining whether
a decline in fair value has been significant or
prolonged. In making this judgement, the historical
data on market volatility as well as the price of the
specific investment are taken into account. The
Group also takes into account financial information
regarding the issuers/investees. During the year,
certain listed investments are determined to have
significant decline in fair value below cost, with
impairment amounting to HK$8,765,700 (2009:
HK$Nil) recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgement

(Continued)

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company assesses annually if investment
in subsidiaries has suffered any impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKAS 39 in determining whether amounts due
from those entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate
discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause
the adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Fair value estimation

The Group’s unlisted debt securities have been
valued based on the expected cash flows discounted
at current rates applicable for items with similar
terms and risk characteristics, and taking into
consideration the volatility of the underlying asset
and duration to maturity. This valuation requires the
Group to make estimates about expected future cash
flows and discount rates, and hence they are subject
to uncertainty. The fair value of the unlisted debt
securities at the end of the reporting period was
HK$48,301,600 (2009: HK$26,600,000). Details of
the valuation methodology are set out in note 15(c)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re B HRARN

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS
At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a
number of new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has

not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKFRS 1
(Revised)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

HKAS 24 (Revised)

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)
-Int 14

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
Amendments to HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 9

Classification of Rights Issues

Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures
for First-time Adopters !

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments #

Related Party Disclosures P!

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement F!

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 ¥

Disclosures - Transfer of
Financial Assets ©I

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Financial Instruments "’

( Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 February 2010

21 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2010

31 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011

4l Effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011, as

appropriate

5] Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2011

[6l Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2012

7l Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2013
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Notes to the Conso
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Bix —E—FFL _H=1—HItFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing the possible
impact on the future adoption of these new/revised
HKFRSs, but are not yet in a position to reasonably
estimate their impact on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.

4. TURNOVER AND REVENUE
The Group is principally engaged in the investment
in listed and unlisted companies. Turnover and
revenue recognised during the year are as follows:

3.

idated Financial Statements

ERVMBHREEARRKRET
(%)
AEBLAEFERKRAZSFHN
8 RERERMBREER A
EFE BRTESEMRAREY
AEEGAVBRRZIZE -

EEER WS
REBMEFEEBABRE LT RIEL
TRAF - AEECDHRAZLEBR
W=

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
it B W
Turnover R
Loss from the sale of listed HESEARBIEER
investments classified under "EZ FRE
investments held for trading 2 BB (29,978,152)  (16,039,273)
Other revenue H bz
Other income H bl A 20 273
Interest income B HA 30,611 42,306
Dividend income from FHEREZ
listed investments LSRN 2,816,555 4,862,346
Exchange gain ME 5% Y 3,905 -
2,851,091 4,904,925
Total revenue 4 U = (27,127,061) (11,134,348)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
For the purpose of internal reporting, the Group only

has one business segment, namely, investments in
listed and unlisted securities. The Group’s turnover,
contribution to operating profit, assets and liabilities
are attributable to this only segment.

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue;
and (i) the Group’s non-current assets other than
financial instruments (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location from which the
Group derives revenue is based on the location
of the markets of the respective investments; and
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset.

RARNEZHRME  AKEES @
EBoa EMMIFETESFZ
BE - -AKEZEXRE  K2mML
BR-BERBEORENELE—

b o

TRANAEE Y - R(i)AEEF
RBEE (M TAERIN ([FEIF
MENEE] RBMHSE 2 EHR -
RE B BRE W & 2 I S & Th A&
BREMBETSAEE: M EF
MBEEZHESEIABEERY
FIT B 30 [ A 2 o

Specified
Revenues non-current assets
Uy # HERBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —TTHNF ZEB-FF —_TITNF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B M B ok
Hong Kong BA
(place of domicile) (& EHE) (27,849,643) (16,853,305) 2,395,155 4,408,327
United States = - 928,332 - -
Others H i [@ 722,582 4,790,625 - -
722,582 5,718,957 - -
(27,127,061) (11,134,348) 2,395,155 4,408,327
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re B mARNE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILEE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIATEIR
2010 2009
—E-BF —ETNEF
HK$ HK$
This is stated after charging (crediting): &0k (GTA) B et
Finance costs ES =422
Other borrowings wholly repayable BARAFARHEEZ
within five years H & 5% 1,175,010 171,838
Imputed interest expense from ZEAHRRERZ
zero-coupon convertible notes AEMERX - 1,116,283
1,175,010 1,288,121
Staff costs BIRAE
Employee benefits expense, EEBAMAX
excluding directors’ remuneration EE T Bl 1,065,453 887,645
Contributions to defined FE MG EIMEER
contribution plans 38,601 31,400
1,104,054 919,045
Other items Hg H
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT & 380,000 365,000
Depreciation e 2,188,206 1,487,563
Exchange loss i 5 &5 18 - 24,071
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HENBARZER - 5,677,265
Share-based payment in respect KEERESHEZ
of share options granted PARR 1D B 2R 2 5K 387,628 -
Operating leases in respect of: BRATHEE 2 EEMRL
office premises WREME 883,089 722,040
hire of machinery HEHas 80,069 48,308
Disclosures pursuant to Rule B EHRE
21.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules F21.12(1)()KIKE
Realised loss on disposal HELMREZ
of listed investments EE2HEE 56,044,475 86,487,638
Realised surplus on unlisted FLEMEREZ
investments BE#R A% (2,000,000) -
Unrealised loss (surplus) on listed rHREZ
investments REREE (BH) 2,426,941 (2,849,767)
Unrealised surplus on unlisted FLmREZ
investments REH B (1,469,084) (609,764)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re B mARNE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILEE

7. TAXATION 7.
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided in

the consolidated financial statements as companies
within the Group incurred losses for taxation

BiIE

HRAEEERERARAR T —F
FER_ZETNFEESVEERE -
WA EELRE M BREAE B NG

purpose for the years 2010 and 2009. TAVE B o
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZEENF
HKS$ HK$
i ok
Deferred taxation: EIERLIE
Reversal of temporary ERrEERE
difference - 485,653
Benefit of tax losses recognised ERTIEEE 2 W m - (485,653)
Tax charge for the year FARABEBEX H - -
Reconciliation of tax expense FIER X H R
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZEENF
HK$ HK$
B ko
Loss before taxation bR A1 R ES 1R (64,961,714) (100,618,027)
Income tax at applicable tax REAHE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) (ZFEZENF :165%)
AEZMEH (10,718,682)  (16,601,974)
Tax exempt revenue IEEA 2 W e (190,107) (2,215,694)
Non-deductible expenses ANA R 2 421,918 1,489,499
Unrecognised tax losses RERTEEE 10,196,318 17,092,544
Utilisation of previously BABTRERABIEEE
unrecognised tax losses - 238,494
Unrecognised temporary difference RERGRHE=2E 290,553 (2,869)
Tax expense for the year FAREREZ - ~
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I\‘/—.I_\

B WK

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE T FFL _H="1—HIFFEF
8. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Of the loss for the year attributable to equity

holders of the Company of HK$64,961,714 (2009:
HK$100,618,027), a loss of HK$95,536,704 (2009:
profit of HK$54,491,138) is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the Group’'s loss attributable to the equity holders
of HK$64,961,714 (2009: HK$100,618,027) and the
weighted average number of 46,261,699 (2009 as
restated: 7,349,906) ordinary shares in issue during
the year. The comparative amount of the basic loss
per share for 2009 has been adjusted to reflect the
impact of the share consolidation and the rights
issues effected during the year.

As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares,
diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per
share in 2010 and 2009.

8.

ERARERREABEFEAE
B
RAEARBEZFEABRGEEAS
BE%64,961,714L (ZEZE A
F o EE100,6180277T) o B
95,536,704TL 2 BB (ZFZENF -
S B M54,491,1387T) TN AN A A
2 RRBIE o

BREE
BREREENRBEAFEEERFH
AFEAE K& B 551875 %64,961,714
T (= EFNF : FK100,618027
oT) RARFEE B BT ERR 2 INEF
¥ 8146,261,6990 (= EZF N F (4%
FEJl) 7,349,906/ it E - — T ZE
NEEREXEBEBEZEEHFTEL
PR LA&H%ZK&?HXTV\H&T#\
Kexe

RZZ—ZFERZZTTAF BHR
Iﬁ%%# LR SRS
BEEGREXRBERR -

//

*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re B HRARN

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FFL _A=1—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 10. EBEREREEAENE
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=M£
The aggregate amount of emoluments RRAREED WS EY 2B E
received or receivable by the Company’s wram
directors were as follows:
2010
—g-25
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits scheme
fees in kind  contributions Total
7k A-1:1 EAK
EEHE REWAE aHEH % CE
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
Executive directors HITES
Kitchell Osman Bin Kitchell Osman Bin - 708,000 12,000 720,000
Davis Angela Hendricks Davis Angela Hendricks - 460,000 12,000 472,000
Choi Ka Wing 2X8 - 464,000 12,000 476,000
Independent non-executive B EHTES
directors
Chung Kong Fei, Stephen ZHR 120,000 - - 120,000
Tsang Wing Ki Bk 120,000 - - 120,000
Ngai Wai Kin mER 120,000 - - 120,000
360,000 1,632,000 36,000 2,028,000
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Notes to the Conso
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Bix —E—FFL _H=1—HItFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

idated Financial Statements

10. EEREREBZAENE (&)

() E=M<e(£)

2009
“ETNEF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fees in kind  contributions Total
e R RIK
BEEHE  KEDAE A GE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Executive directors HTES
Kitchell Osman Bin Kitchell Osman Bin - 630,000 12,000 642,000
Davis Angela Hendricks Davis Angela Hendricks - 420,000 12,000 432,000
Choi Ka Wing 253 - 435,000 12,000 447,000
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Chung Kong Fei, Stephen 7 120,000 - - 120,000
Tsang Wing Ki Lk 120,000 - - 120,000
Swartz Kristi Lynn Swartz Kristi Lynn 120,000 - - 120,000
Ngai Wai Kin mER 120,000 - - 120,000
480,000 1,485,000 36,000 2,001,000

Note: All executive directors are the key
management personnel, also as the related
parties, of the Company.

Wit MBEMTESHRIEE
BAE TAKRREER
BAL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Bix —E—FFL _H=1—HItFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 10. EEREREEAEME (&)

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments (b) BEFHMAL
Of the five individuals with highest rEBRESERFMALTH -
emoluments of the Group, three (2009: three) =R(ZFFNTF - =F)RE
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed E o HHFMAGEE B HRERM
in note 10(a) to the consolidated financial 0B E - EttmE (= F
statements. The aggregate of the emoluments FNF  HEHE) N ZFHWE
in respect of the other two (2009: two) CERI N

individuals are as follows:

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
B B
Salaries and other e K& H b &
emoluments 700,000 680,000
Retirement scheme IRIRET I 3R
contributions 20,200 21,250
720,200 701,250
Their emoluments were within the following WEZHFMNFUATEHE :
band:
Number of employee
EEHEH
2010 2009
—E-ZEF —ETAF
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 B E T 28 %1,000,000T 2 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re B HRARN

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE—F—

FE A= F—AILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(c)

Share options granted to the directors of
the Company

Under the share option scheme approved by
the shareholders of the Company on 2 May
2003 (the "Option Scheme”), the directors
of the Company may grant options to those
participants who, in the opinion of the Board,
have contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group and
any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest. During the year, no share options
were granted to the directors. Details of the
Option Scheme and movements in the Option
Scheme during the year are disclosed in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

(c)

10. EEREREBZAENE (&)

BFRABESZHBRE

BEBEARFBREN_ZTZT=F
TAZAEZ BIRESE
([EERRERTEl]) - ARRES
AREEER R TLN A LS
AEBNAEBFA T ARE
JIENERBERERERIFEER
Bl 2HERLERE - RF
NI A E SR ERE - ﬁﬁ
RiEFTEI R FANED) 2 FIE

ma W%ﬁﬁmzwﬁﬁo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—HILFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. ¥ BEKRRZHE
(@)  Group (a) #%ME
Furniture
Leasehold Office and Motor
improvements  equipment fixtures vehicle Total
RENELE BLERE HAREE "E Bt
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$

ok ot op op ok

Recondiliation of carrying ~ BZ-TTNF
amount - year ended TZAZT-RLEE

31 December 2009 EEBEHE
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A-H - 116,814 112,274 3,217,994 3,447,082
Additions RE 671,400 84,008 - 1,693,400 2,448,808
Depreciation nE (18,6500 (77,2200 (51,940) (1,339,753) (1,487,563)
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE

T-A=1-H 652,750 123,602 60,334 3,571,641 4,408,327
Reconciliation of carrying BZ_-F-%%
amount - year ended TZRA=t+-HLEE
31 December 2010 FREEZHE
At 1 January 2010 RZE-ZF-fA-H 652,750 123,602 60334 3,571,641 4408327
Additions RE - 155434 19,600 - 175,034
Depreciation e (223,800)  (101,443)  (52,821) (1,810,142) (2,188,206)
At 31 December 2010 R=2-%f%

+=ZA=1-H 428950 177,593 27,113 1,761,499 2,395,155
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-ZF-A-H
Cost AR 671,400 349,728 154,715 5430,425 6,606,268
Accumulated depreciation R E (18,650)  (226,126)  (94,381) (1,858,784) (2,197,941)

652,750 123,602 60334 3,571,641 4408327

At 31 December 2010 R-E-%F

t=B=t-H
Cost A 671,400 481644 174315 5430425 6,757,784
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (242,450)  (304,051)  (147,202) (3,668,926) (4,362,629)

428,950 171,593 27,113 1,761,499 2,395,155
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Notes to the Conso
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—HILFE

idated Financial Statements

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. VE BERSZEE)
(Continued)
(b) Company (b) XAF
Leasehold Office Furniture
improvements equipment  and fixtures Total
HENEEE BOAERE  BARZE CE
HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
Reconciliation of carrying (E-SENE
amount - year ended TZA=T-BLEE
31 December 2009 EREZHER
At 1 January 2009 R-_ZENE-HA—-H - 116,814 112,274 229,088
Additions NE 671,400 84,008 - 755,408
Depreciation & (18,650) (77,220) (51,940) (147,810)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE
+-A=+-H 652,750 123,602 60,334 836,686
Reconciliation of carrying HZ-F-%F
amount - year ended TZA=t-BLFE
31 December 2010 FHEZHE
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-ZTF—-A—-H 652,750 123,602 60,334 836,686
Additions NE - 155,434 19,600 175,034
Depreciation il (223,800) (101,443) (52,821) (378,064)
At 31 December 2010 RZB-ZF
+=-A=+-H 428,950 177,593 27,113 633,656
At 1 January 2010 R-_ZT-ZTF-H—-H
Cost AR 671,400 349,728 154,715 1,175,843
Accumulated depreciation R & (18,650) (226,126) (94,381) (339,157)
652,750 123,602 60,334 836,686
At 31 December 2010 R-B-%%
t=A=t-H
Cost KA 671,400 481,644 174,315 1,327,359
Accumulated depreciation R HTE (242,450) (304,051) (147,202) (693,703)
428,950 177,593 27,113 633,656
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
Bir —E—FFf _H=1—HItFE

12. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12. RMIBARZRER
Company
¥ YN

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$ HK$
oo B

Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - A AN
At 1 January n—H—H 25 33
Disposal H & - (8)
At 31 December w+=—A=+—H 25 25
Due from subsidiaries JE W BT B8~ /) 5B 922,977,914 656,031,144
Provision for doubtful debts R AR (466,346,826) (377,271,207)
456,631,088 278,759,937
Total a5t 456,631,113 278,759,962
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, FEWM B ARIRIB AEETE - 2

interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—HILFE

12. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The following is a list of the details of the

subsidiaries held by the Company at 31 December

12. RMBAT 2= (&)
R-F—2Ft-B=t-A@A
ARBBZHEATRENT

2010:
Particulars  Proportion of nominal
Place of incorporation of issued  value of issued capital
Name of subsidiary and type of legal entity Principal activities share capital  held by the Company
B lgo sk E#1T ERFFBCRT
WELAR LR EEERER TEXH BREFE BRAEEZ LA
Directly  Indirectly
B# I3
Ample Spring International  The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
Limited limited liability company of US$1 each
HRERERRF RERNES REER 1REREE 100% -
BREERT (Ea 1
Anchor Talent Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
limited liability company of US$1 each
Anchor Talent Limited RREZES - REER 1REREE 100% -
BREERTA (EPA 3]
Gedaulia Investments The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share - 100%
Limited limited liability company of US$1 each
Gedaulia Investments EBRUHS REER REREE - 100%
Limited AREARH 1R E B
Great Panorama The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share - 100%
International Limited limited liability company of US$1 each
Great Panorama KBRTES REZR REREE - 100%
International Limited BREMERA 1ETZEBR
Gufalore Investments Limited  The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
limited liability company of US$1 each
Gufalore Investments Limited KBRTES REZR REREE 100% -
BREARA 1ETZEBR
Pacific Kingdom The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
International Limited limited liability company of US$1 each
Pacific Kingdom RERAHE RERR REREE 100% -
International Limited BREARA [EFra-§ L
Triumph Way Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100% -
limited liability company of HK$1 each
BEARAE R REEK 1REREE 100% -
BEREERT BT ERK
Visionary Limited The Cayman Islands, Dormant 1 ordinary share - 100%
limited liability company of US$1 each
Visionary Limited EESR LTEEX 1R EREE - 100%
BREERT 1ETZ EBR

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of year. EMBATIRELESHED BT
AERE S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Bix —E—FFL _H=1—HItFE

13. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 13. AIHHERE

Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —ETNEF
Note HK$ HK$
HiF B B I
Equity investments, at fair value BRERE EAAE
Listed in Hong Kong EEA LM 13(b) 314,091,572 214,556,799
Equity investments, at cost BRERE  EEX 13(c)
Unlisted in Hong Kong EEBFELT 36,058,300 36,058,300
Impairment loss VERIEN ki 13(d)  (30,058,300) (30,058,300)
6,000,000 6,000,000
Unlisted overseas EBINELT 11,640,900 11,640,900
Impairment loss BB E 18 13(d) (8,530,916) -
3,109,984 11,640,900
9,109,984 17,640,900
Debt investments, unlisted BRRE EEBF LT
in Hong Kong, at fair value BARE 15(c) 3,600,000 26,600,000
Total &t 326,801,556 258,797,699
Current portion EEEv) (3,600,000) -
323,201,556 258,797,699
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FFL _A=1—HIFE

13. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 13. AIEHERE (&)

(Continued)

(@) As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount @ MNRZTE—EZEF+-_/F=+—
of the Group’s interest in the shares or B AEERUTEBLTAR
underlying shares in the following Hong Kong AR EER D ER
listed companies exceeded 10% of the total FHEEARNERREE 2
assets of the Group. 10% °

Proportion of
nominal value

Particulars of issued
Place of of issued capital held
Name incorporation Principal activities share capital by the Group
KEE
BRI ERTEX
£1 aE AR L TEXK RAFE ZREERH
Rising Development Bermuda Investment holding and trading ~ Ordinary share of 2.52%
Holdings Limited in securities, manufacture and HK$0.01 each
sale of fur garments, trading of
fur skins and business of mining
natural resources
EREEERERRAA BRE REBRLESFEE LRARSKREE 2.52%
HERHERERK - BE0.017T
ERHEURRAREREREH
Oriental Ginza Bermuda Provision of retail-related  Ordinary share of 3.90%
Holdings Limited consultancy and management HK$0.20 each
services and property
investment business
RO REERARR BRE RUETEERL LARRSREE 3.90%
EERBURNERERH B 1£0.207T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
#raf

VSRR B ot

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

13. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

13. AHHERE (#F)

(b)
Group
2010 2009
—E-FF —TENF
HKS$ HK$
B ok
Market value of equity REB LM ERES
securities listed in Z A
Hong Kong 314,091,572 214,556,799
Fair value of individually &R B ERREZ
impaired available-for-sale A ERERE S
equity securities ZRRE 22,796,921 1,134,442

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group’'s available-for-sale equity securities
were individually determined to be impaired
on the basis of a significant or prolonged
decline in their fair value below cost which
indicated that the cost of the Group’s
investment in these items may not be
recovered. Impairment losses on these
investments were recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair value information has not been disclosed
for these equity investments because the
instruments are unlisted and their fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group
intends to hold these investments on a long-
term basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

13. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)
Provision for diminution in value on unlisted

(d)

equity investments

13. AHHERE (#F)

(d) SFEMESRERMERRE

2010 —E-EF

Effective (lassification
shareholding Recoverable  Impairment of financial
interest Cost amount loss assets
ERRE A THERE AEESR tHEEDE

HK$ HK§ HK$

BE B A%
(i) Hennabun Capital Group Limited ("Hennabun") 059% 31,000,000 6,000,000 25,000,000 Available-for-sale
Hennabun Capital Group Limited ([ Hennabun |) AfiHE
(i) CSN Group Holdings Limited ("CSN Group") 0.49% 5,058,300 - 5058300 Available-for-sale
CSN Group Holdings Limited ([ CSN Group)) A E
(iii)  LIC Opportunities Fund (Cayman) Limited ("LIC") Not applicable 11,640,900 3,109,984 8530916 Available-for-sale
LIC Opportunities Fund (Cayman) Limited (LIC ) iR AHRHE

Hennabun is a private company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands

and is principally engaged in investment
holding and its subsidiaries are engaged
in securities trading, investment holding
and provision of brokerage and financial

services.

47,699,200 9,109,984

38,589,216

(i)

Hennabun& — & L A
NAl REBEREZHE
MY EERER
B EMBAR®
EFHRXH  BREER
RIEHERL &L ER
& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE—F—FE+-A=+—HILFE

13. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

(d)  Provision for diminution in value on unlisted
equity investments (Continued)

13. AHHERE (#F)
(d) FELmERRERERE (&)

(i)  CSN Group is a private company (i)  CSN Groups—MEFLA
incorporated in Cayman Islands and AR RAERESEM
is principally engaged in business R - FEREEREE
of advertising, media services and % HEERBREER
television home shopping. FEREY) o

(i) LIC is an open-ended fund and the (i) LICTh—FHABAES -
investment of LIC is primarily focus LCEEFHFTREED
in Asia-Pacific equity market. Fortis KEREMmE - LICZ
Prime Fund Solutions (Cayman) Limited EEBRBIEBEEED
and Fortis Prime Fund Solutions (Asia) 7l AFortis Prime Fund
Limited is the administrator and sub- Solutions (Cayman)
administrator of LIC respectively. Limited f&zFortis Prime

Fund Solutions (Asia)

Limited

2009 —TENF

Effective Classification
shareholding Recoverable Impairment of financial
interest Cost amount loss assets
ERMpRE KA ARERE AEEE  eREENE

HK$ HKS HKS

A B ks

Hennabun 0.91% 31,000,000 6,000,000 25,000,000  Available-for-sale

Hennabun AHHE

Cosmedia Group Holdings Limited 0.49% 5,058,300 - 5,058,300  Available-for-sale

Cosmedia Group Holdings Limited e

36,058,300 6,000,000 30,058,300

The recoverable amount has been assessed
by the directors with reference to latest
available financial information of the investee

companies.
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re B HmARNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Br —E—FFL _H=1—HItFE

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 14. EZBEZEARLEBEIRz2EE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
Group Company
iy | VNN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F _TITNF ZEB-TF _TITNF
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
it B ok B B
Held for trading BFEEE
Equity investments RIERE
Listed in Hong Kong EREELED 76,790,293 18,340,802 - -
Listed overseas TR £ 13,156,000 10,807,830 13,156,000 10,807,830
89,946,293 29,148,632 13,156,000 10,807,830
Designated upon NREARE D 14(a)
initial recognition
Debt investments BEBRE
Unlisted in Hong Kong &SI LT 15(c) 44,701,600 - - -
Total &t 134,647,893 29,148,632 13,156,000 10,807,830
(@) The debt investments are unlisted convertible (@) ZEEBRENESBLETAR

15.

notes/bonds issued by listed companies in
Hong Kong. As each of the convertible notes/
bonds contains an embedded derivative,
the entire notes/bonds met the criteria for
designating as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO

Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule
21.12 of the Listing Rules, the Group discloses:

(a)

provision for diminution in value on other
investments as disclosed in note 13(d) to the
consolidated financial statements;

its ten largest investments with brief
description of the investee companies as
follows:

G PRI LE TS e
% o M E AT RRER A
B RARSTERG - W2 H
BiEEFEHABEBIARE
RAEED REBEEL I
f -

REAS

1R E TR R E21 1262 B - A

EEHERE -

(@) EMSERERER TREE
B 5 3 2 M R 1 3(0) B R

(b) AEBEZTREEHALT :
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Notes to the Conso
re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FE+-A=+—AILFEE

15. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

idated Financial Statements

15. REMAS (&

(b) Top ten investments (b) TXEE
2010 —E—FF
Market value/ Unrealised Dividend
fair value holding received/
Effective Cost as at asat gain (loss) receivable (lassification
Number of  shareholding 31 December 31 December arising on during of financial
Name of investee company shares held interest 2010 2010 revaluation the year assets
R-%-%8% R=%-3% EffREEL
tZB=t-8B  tzB=t-H FRRER ERCk/
FRENAZR fiERA#E ERRE LRE ZhE/DRE W (F8) EhRe  SREEEN
HKS HKS HKS HKS
() Rising Development Holdings Limited 35,000,000 2.52% 59,500,000 62,300,000 2,800,000 - Avallable-for-sale
ELERARERLA A E
(i) Oriental Ginza Holdings Limited 42,765,000 3.90% 62,408,820 62,009,250 (399,570) - Auallable-for-sale
ERREERERAA e
(i) Chinese Estates Holdings Limited 3,665,000 0.19% 45,041,500 47,058,600 2,017,100 1,502,650 Available-for-sale
E\BZEEBRLA At E
(iv) Beijing Yu Sheng Tang 100,000,000 3.21% 28,500,000 33,500,000 5,000,000 - Held for trading
Pharmaceutical Group Limited REEE
IriEEEEEEERAT
(v} Golden Resorts Group Limited 50,000,000 0.48% 22,000,000 26,500,000 4,500,000 - Auallable-for-sale
E55EERLA g
() G-Resources Group Limited 4107352 0.29% 30,037,405 25,136,485 (4,900,920) - Avallable-for-sale
BREREEERAA AfLE
(vii)  Fulbond Holdings Limited Not applicable  Not applicable 10,000,000 20,000,000 10,000,000 - Held for trading
(unlisted convertible notes) TER TER B#EEE
EAERARAD (FLTTRRZE)
(vill) - China Strategic Holdings Limited 71,686,666 1.94% 19,809,151 18,996,966 (812,185) - Auallable-for-sale
hEEEERAF EHE
(i) Freeman Financial Corporation Limited 54,016,818 2.13% 15,020,250 18,635,802 3,615,552 - Heldfor trading
REGEARERDE FEEE
(x)  ICube Technology Holdings Not applicable ~ Not applicable 17,000,000 17,000,000 - - Held for trading
Limited (unlsted convertible bonds) iyl iR REEE
PERETHEEEERAT
(ELmTakES)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

Bz

15.

E—FFf A= —OUFE

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued) 15. REMAS (&
(b) Top ten investments (Continued) (b) + 7( K& (E)
2009 —EENF
Market value/ Unrealised Dividend
fair value holding received/
Fffective Cost as at asat gain (loss) receivable (lassification
Number of ~ shareholding 31 December 31 December arising on during of financial
Name of investee company shares held interest 2009 2009 revaluation the year assets
WZEENE RZEENE EfiRELZ
+tZF=+-B tZA=f-H RERHR Bl
FRENAAR G OEE ERMmE LRE mE/DRE Wz (B8) Ehke  SREAEER
HKS$ HKS HKS HKS
China Public Healthcare (Holdmg) Limited 285,000,000 2.65% 58,895,000 60,420,000 1,525,000 - Available-for-sale
HELLRE(ER)ERD e
China Strategic Holdings Limited 96,666,666 2.61% 26,711,866 54,133,333 27,421 467 - Available-for-sale
TREEERAA AfLE
GR Vietnam Holdings Limited (unlisted Not applicable ~ Not applicable 25,000,000 23,000,000 (2,000,000) - Avallable-for-sale
convertible bonds) IS N AihE
BEERERAR (FLATARES)
Poly Development Holdings Limited 28,456,000 1.43% 7,825,400 21911120 14,085,720 - Avallable-for-sale
REXEZRERAE AftnE
G-Resources Group Limited 41,216,352 0.29% 32,480,857 20,196,013 (12,284,844) - Available-for-sale
BRERERARATA TfiLE
China Sci-Tech Holdings Limited 63,891,645 2.01% 14,920,211 15,653,453 733,42 - Avallable-for-sale
hERKREEERAE e
China Chief Cable TV Group Limited 28,125,000 1.50% 9,421,875 14,906,250 5,484 375 - Available-for-sale
HECEBERAF AftnE
LIC Opportunities Fund (Cayman) Limited Not applicable ~ Not applicable 11,640,900 Not applicable - - Available-for-sale
LIC Opportunities Fund (Cayman) Limited TEE TER @R g
Pacific Century Regional Developments Limited 11,000,000 0.36% 21,121,548 10,807,830 (10313,718) 4793042 Held for trading
ERONRRERAA FEER
G-Prop (Holdings) Limited 27,000,000 1.11% 10,071,000 8,235,000 (1,836,000) - Avallable-for-sale
SELEERAR AftnE

E-—REEBREAERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE—F—FE+-A=+—HILFE

15.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
Top ten investments (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(i)

Rising Development Holdings
Limited (”Rising Development”) was
incorporated in Bermuda and the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1004). Rising Development is principally
engaged in investment holding and
trading in securities, manufacture and
sale of fur garments, trading of fur
skins and business of mining natural
resources. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2010, the audited
consolidated loss attributable to equity
holders of Rising Development was
HK$142,901,000 with basic and diluted
loss per share of HK21.77 cents. As at
31 March 2010, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity
holders was HK$1,057,405,000.

Oriental Ginza Holdings Limited
("Oriental Ginza"”) was incorporated
in Bermuda and the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 996).
Oriental Ginza is principally engaged in
provision of retail-related consultancy
and management services and
property investment business. For the
financial year ended 31 December
2009, the audited consolidated loss
attributable to equity holders of
Oriental Ginza was HK$458,755,000
with basic and diluted loss per share
of HK$0.46. As at 31 December 2009,
its audited consolidated net assets
attributable to the equity holders was
HK$1,571,073,000.
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(b) T+ABEE)

)y BREEEZERAERAR
(TExRsEE]))REH
EEMAT HBEHR
BT ER T (B D
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BXrEZNEREERrRk
BHEE REREE
FEKK - EFIHEE
KARBABIRER -
HE-_ZT—ZTF=A
=t+—HLETBRFE -
BREEEZFEAR
HREZEEEBEAS
#142,901,0007T °
WRERREEEEASD
2177l e M =ZF —
TE=ZA=1+—H B
BREEC B AR
EREBEZEEEETE
/475 #1,057,405,000
7_E °

(i RABREERBRA
Al ([RAEE])RARE
RiEGMAST - ERRH
REEZ T ER BT (IR
AR 996) - By
REFENXEREHTE
BEEREERS UK
MEREXEE HEZ
TEENFE+_/A=+—
HIEHBFE  RAR
EERFAEAEBGLLR
BB BERBEK
458,755,0007C © & /&
EXREEEE ALY
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+ZA=+—H8 "®A
REEDTFE ABLE
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#1,571,073,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE—F—FE+-A=+—HILFE

15.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
Top ten investments (Continued)

(b)

(iii)

Chinese Estates Holdings Limited
("Chinese Estates”) was incorporated
in Bermuda and the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 127).
Chinese Estates is principally engaged in
property investment and development,
brokerage, securities investment, money
lending and cosmetics distribution
and trading. For the financial year
ended 31 December 2009, the audited
consolidated profit attributable to
equity holders of Chinese Estates
was HK$8,648,727,000 with basic
and diluted earnings per share of
HK$4.34. As at 31 December 20009,
its audited consolidated net assets
attributable to the equity holders was
HK$38,632,912,000.

Beijing Yu Sheng Tang Pharmaceutical
Group Limited (“BJ Yu Sheng Tang”)
was incorporated in Bermuda and
the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1141). BJ Yu Sheng Tang
is principally engaged in supply and
procurement, pharmaceutical, provision
of finance and securities investment.
For the financial year ended 31 March
2010, the audited consolidated loss
attributable to equity holders of BJ
Yu Sheng Tang was HK$16,762,000
with basic and diluted loss per share
of HK0.92 cent. As at 31 March 2010,
its audited consolidated net assets
attributable to the equity holders was
HK$946,679,000.

15. BREHE (&)
(b) +ABEE)

iy EAEBEEXESEEBRA
RI(TEAEEDDRE
REFMARST - ERMHD
REEZ T ER B (&
MDREE - 127) « FE A
EXTEREMER
BERNEBR - KLKRY -
BERE ME - PH
REBELR HBHEZ
TEEANFE+-_A=+—
HEVBEE EAE
XREFBEAEBRGEK
BEREAERNABBE
8,648,727,0007T °
REARBEERI A
BHEEAZATL - R ZTE
hE+=-—A=+—8"
EANEXEREFAARE
HEEZEEEEFE
/5% 75 #38,632,912,000

ﬂ: o

(iv) R EEZHEERS
RAE ([HEREEE])
REREFMKY - H
RO R R FTER BT
(B3 R 5% - 1141) -
IRHAEEETEREH
JE R EREE - B2 1R
BENBHIREER -
HE-_ZT—ZTF=A
=+—BLBBRFE -
IRHEEREEZFEA
LK EZEEEER
7 #16,762,0007T °
WRERREEEEASD
o.Ml - RZE—F
F=ZA=+—H IR
HEZERTFE ARG
KEZREEEFER
7 #946,679,0007T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILFE

15.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
Top ten investments (Continued)

(b)

(v)

(vi)

Golden Resorts Group Limited
("Golden Resorts”) was incorporated
in Bermuda and the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1031).
Golden Resorts is principally engaged
in operation of hotels and trading
of listed securities. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2009, the
audited consolidated profit attributable
to equity holders of Golden Resorts
was HK$228,244,000 with basic
and diluted earnings per share of
HK2.80 cents and HK2.79 cents
respectively. As at 31 December 2009,
its audited consolidated net assets
attributable to the equity holders was
HK$3,200,886,000.

G-Resources Group Limited
("G-Resources”) was incorporated
in Bermuda and the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1051).
G-Resources is principally engaged
in gold and related metals mining
business, provision of financial
information services, trading of
electronic goods and accessories, and
securities trading. For the financial
year ended 30 June 2010, the audited
consolidated loss attributable to
equity holders of G-Resources was
HK$351,973,000 with basic and diluted
loss per share of HK2.5 cents. As at 30
June 2010, its audited consolidated net
assets attributable to the equity holders
was HK$4,687,063,000.
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15. REMHE (&)
(b) T+ABEE)

v) =eEEARAR(HE
eEB]RBEREET
it B Sz - H IR R
RAETER LT (&G R
5% :1031) cEHe & E
FERELEBHERE
BErmEHF -HE-ZT
ZAhE+_A=+—
HIEHBEE 25
R AEABGEL
BERGEERNABE
228,244,0007T ' B R%
ERXREERF DR A
75 152 801l &2 B #2.79
WeR=ZFEZNF+=
A=+—H =#&%H
EaiA AELEERZ
RAEBEEFEABE
3,200,886,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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15.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
Top ten investments (Continued)

(b)

(vii)

(viii)

Fulbond Holdings Limited (“Fulbond”)
was incorporated in Bermuda and the
shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1041). Fulbond is principally
engaged in manufacture and trading of
wooden products including blockboard
and particle board, door skin and other
wooden products. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2009,
the audited consolidated loss from
continuing operations and discontinued
operation attributable to equity holders
of Fulbond was US$53,877,000 with
basic and diluted loss per share of
US0.41 cent. As at 31 December 2009,
its audited consolidated net liabilities
attributable to the equity holders was
US$59,992,000.

China Strategic Holdings Limited
(“China Strategic”) was incorporated
in Hong Kong and the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 235).
China Strategic is principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of battery
products and related accessories
and investment in securities. For the
financial year ended 31 December
2009, the audited consolidated loss
attributable to equity holders of China
Strategic was HK$51,686,000 with
basic and diluted loss per share of
HK2.23 cents. As at 31 December 2009,
its audited consolidated net assets
attributable to the equity holders was
HK$844,626,000.

15. REMHE (&)
(b) +XREBEE)

(vi) BHIERERAR (18
B R ERETM
FRSL + HRR D B A AT
FIR BT (BRHB R :
1041) - BHIEZERETE
NELEEREHARE MR
BEAREIR RO ER -
PIRE R E A A B 72 G o
BE-_ZTZNAF+=A
=+—ALUBREE -
BHEREZZAEA
EERBEREEBR
EARIEEEEBLEEZ
4R & E5 18 A53,877,000
En BREAREE
B A0.41%E 1l - N =
ZENF+_A=1+—
B BRERESEES
ABREEZEA A
& /%18 A59,992,0003%
775 o

FREBEABRAR([H
KDREBFTMAKL
HEROHREERTERLE
m(@m RS 235) -
PRIENFBTEER
HEEBLER KBS
e UARBHEE -
BE_TZENF+_A
=+ —BLHBFE -
PRERFFEARGL
BEREGABBEARAEE
51,686,000 * & I &
AEEEEEBEBEARBY
223l e RZTEZE L F
+-—A=+—H #%
BHFE ARLEEZ
RAEBEEFERAEE
844,626,0007T °

(viii)
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15.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
Top ten investments (Continued)

(b)

(ix)

Freeman Financial Corporation Limited
(“Freeman Financial”) was incorporated
in Cayman Islands and the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
279). Freeman Financial is principally
engaged in trading of securities,
provision of finance, property holding
and investment, insurance agency
and brokerage business, securities
brokerage, investment advisory and
investment holding. For the financial
year ended 31 March 2010, the audited
consolidated profit attributable to
equity holders of Freeman Financial was
HK$297,486,000 with basic and diluted
earnings per share of HK$1.16. As at 31
March 2010, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity
holders was HK$1,528,222,000.

ICube Technology Holdings Limited
("ICube Technology”) was incorporated
in Bermuda and the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 139). ICube
Technology is principally engaged in
trading and distribution of electronic
products and other merchandise and
securities investment and trading. For
the financial year ended 31 March
2010, the audited consolidated loss
attributable to equity holders of ICube
Technology was HK$57,966,000 with
basic and diluted loss per share of
HK2.05 cents. As at 31 March 2010,
its audited consolidated net assets
attributable to the equity holders was
HK$168,674,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
Valuation basis of debt investments

(c)

E—TF A= OUFE

15. REAE (&)
ERBREGEEEE

(c)

The debt investments are unlisted convertible
notes/bonds issued by listed companies in
Hong Kong. At the end of the reporting

period,

the convertible notes/bonds were

revalued by independent professional qualified
valuers using the Binomial Tree Pricing Model.

BBRER/BE LM ARET
ZIEETABBERE EF
MRERFREAAE RS - AR IR
S EFRBIEEARERME
A A —EE AR EERAE
o AR ER EHFZEH

The contractual maturity of the convertible FIEHHBEZERN Z —IBEG A
notes/bonds is used as an input to this model. ETEo
Classified under fair value Classified under
through profit or loss available-for-sale
REERERRAARENEAE RETHLENR
ABC [Cube Applied Rising
Communications ~ Technology  Development Fulbond Development
(Holdings) Holdings Holdings Holdings Holdings
Limited Limited Limited Limited Total Limited
HEHET
£ (BR) NEEE RIERRE EALR 3]
ARAA ARAA ARAA ARAA ait ERERAR
Principal amount %3 HKS % HKS % HKS &% HKS &% HKS % HKSE %
5,700,000 17,000,000 2,001,600 10,000,000 34,701,600 3,600,000
Date of maturity EL 12 December 30 November 9 December 28 December 14 October
201 2013 2013 2012 M
- R-zf ZF-Zf CE-CE E-f
tZAtzR  +-R=tB  tZAAB fZAZTAR TATEA
Coupon rate 28 A%perannum  Zerocoupon 8% perannum  Zero coupon Zero coupon
BE% 28 5E8% 28 28
Farly remption clause REBOER 0 (i) & () i i) (i)
Volatilty i 62.19% 99.30% £9.93% 51.91% 65.10%
Rik-free interest rate BERHE
(with reference to (BZEENE
Hong Kong Exchange 5885
Fund Note 0.34% 0.94% 0.95% 0.58% 0.33%
Fair value at W-B-BE+ZR=1-8
31 December 2010 LANE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
i i i i £% B
Convertble notesloonds T ARE%E/B% 5,700,000 17,000,000 2001600 20,000,000 44,701,600 3,600,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-—F—FE+-A=+—AILEE

15. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

(c) Valuation basis of debt investments
(Continued)

(i) ABC Communications (Holdings) Limited
may by notice at any time up to (but
excluding) maturity date redeem whole
or any part of the outstanding bonds
at an amount equal to 104% of the
principal amount of such bonds. The
conversion option was exercised and
the shares were allotted to the Group in

January 2011.

(i) ICube Technology Holdings Limited may
redeem the whole or any part of the
bonds at any time from the issue date to
the maturity date with 7 business days

prior notice.

(iii)  The note was disposed through sale in

January 2011.

(iv)  The Group may exercise conversion of
the notes/bonds at any time up to the
maturity dates subject to notice periods
as stipulated in the respective terms
and conditions of the respective notes/
bonds. The Group intends to exercise
the conversion within 12 months after

the end of the reporting period.

16. OTHER RECEIVABLES

—p-2%

15. REAE ()
(0 FBEREHEEEE)

(i) FEE GER) AR AR
£ EI HA B Al B B 38 20 LA AR
ERARERESF LS
104%E R 2= 5B EESH
S EH AR I - mRED
BT MASEERZ
T-——F—AEREEH

Betn o

(i FPEUEFHEEEER
RAAIEHRITEEEER
HIRBER A7TEE X ATRE
BAEDEAMERESK
HAEMER D ©

(i) HEROR =T
A S B RE -

(iv) AKEAIREZZIHBERE
BITEZEREBEH2
BEE WRABTEAR
RE/EHFEBEZERR
REFFTARE 2 BAE - K
BB BB R A R 1218
R RTTEA RRHRAE -

16. HMEWR

Group Company
rEE AT
2009 2010 2009
“TTNF —B-BF —TTHF
HK$ HK$ HKS$
B B 7B

Deposits and e RFEMK

prepayments 349,017

Due from securities JiE U 35 5
brokers (Note)

&R\ (#:E) 13,350,188

377,405 335,156 365,348

23 23 23

13,699,205

377,428 335,179 365,371

Note: Amount at 31 December 2010 represents proceeds
from trading in listed securities which was fully

settled in January 2011.
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A EHRARMNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Bix —E—FFL _H=1—HItFE

17. SHARE CAPITAL 17. B

Number of Number of
ordinary shares of  ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each HK$0.01 each Nominal value

SREE SREE
ER0.107T2 ER001T 2
LEREEA LEREA Hf
Note HKS
Wi ik
Authorised: EE
At 31 December 2009 and RIFENETZAZT-H
1 January 2010 k=%-%%-H-H 20,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000
Sub-dlivision of shares et (vi)fd) (20,000,000,000) 200,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2010 R-B-ZF+ZF=1-H - 200,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRER:
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-H 375,791,474 - 37,579,147
Conversion of convertible notes BRIBRER 311,802,232 - 31,180,223
Issue of shares under placement  REEERTRA 239,000,000 - 23,900,000
Issue of shares under rights issue ~ REEFETRE 512,155,110 - 51,215,511
Share repurchase BERIH (6) - (1)
Capital reduction HIRRA - - (129,487,392)
Share consolidation R a6 (1294,873,929) - -
At 31 December 2009 and RZEENETZA=T-H
1 January 2010 k-2-%%-H-H 143,874,881 - 14,387,488
Issue of shares under placements  REEEXTRG (i) & (i 128,770,000 - 12,877,000
lssue of shares under share RERRETHEIRN
option scheme (i) & (vi) 97,385,000 - 9,738,500
Issue of shares under rights issue ~ RERKEZETRA (iv) 569,279,762 - 56,927,976
Share repurchase BERA (v) 3) - -
Share consolidation &t b (vi)fa) (892,344,158) - -
Capital reduction Bl (vi)ib) (46,965,482) 46,965,482 (93,461,309
- 46,965,482 469,655
Issue of shares under rights issue ~ RERRETRG (vii) - 375,723,856 3,757,238
At 31 December 2010 RB-25+-8=1-H - 422,689,338 4,226,893
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
—E-FE S A= ALEE
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17.

— =

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 7 September 2009, the Company entered into
a fully underwritten placing agreement with a
placing agent to place 100,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each of the Company to independent
placees at a price of HK$0.38 per placing share. The
placing was completed on 19 February 2010.

On 5 January 2010, the Company entered into an
underwritten placing agreement with a placing
agent to place 28,770,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each of the Company to independent
placees at a price of HK$0.38 per placing share. The
placing was completed on 14 January 2010.

On 15 January 2010, 11,995,000 share options
were granted to eight qualified allotees under the
share option scheme of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.42 per option share. These option
shares had been fully exercised and were allotted
on 18 January 2010.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 26 April 2010, an ordinary
resolution was passed for the issue of 569,279,762
rights shares at a price of HK$0.15 each to
qualifying shareholders on the basis of two rights
share for every share held on 26 April 2010. The
rights shares were issued and allotted on 18 May
2010.

On 10 August 2010, the Company repurchased 3
shares at a market price of HK$0.052 per share.
The title documents of all repurchased shares were
cancelled and destroyed on 12 August 2010.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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H-RERETY —HE2EEHE
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FREEBY0I0OTZARAE
BRTFEARA  (EEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE=F

I\‘/—.I_\

17.

—EFEf A=+ —HIFFEE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

On 15 October 2010, 85,390,000 share options
were granted to twelve qualified allotees under the
share option scheme of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.10 per option share. These option
shares had been fully exercised and were allotted
on 19 October 2010.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 24 September 2010, a resolution
in respect of the capital reorganisation, including
share consolidation of the issued shares, capital
reduction and sub-division of each of the
authorised but unissued share of the Company,
were approved by the shareholders. The capital
reduction was approved by the Grand Court of the
Cayman lIslands on 26 November 2010 and became
effective after 4:00 p.m. on 1 December 2010,
details of which were as follows:

(a) consolidation of every twenty issued shares
of HK$0.10 each into one consolidated share
of HK$2.00 each;

(b) reduction in paid-up capital of each
consolidated shares from HK$2.00 each
to HK$0.01 each by cancelling paid-
up capital to the extent of HK$1.99 on
each consolidated share so as to form an
adjusted share of HK$0.01 each. Based
upon the number of shares in issue as at the
effective date, the issued share capital of
the Company of HK$93,930,964 consisting
of 939,309,640 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each was reduced by HK$93,461,309 to
HK$469,655 consisting of 46,965,482
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each;

17. B& (&

iaE

(vi)

(vii)

E-—REEBREAERR

(%)

RZZE—FFTHTHB  BE
AAaERERE T 2264
% 7% BD A J& 3£85,390,00017 & A%
BOTEEASRERERMNBE
0107 - ZEHWRIERMHE 2 &
BE YER-_ZT—ZF+ A
+HBERE-

JiZIN/NEE] —ZEFhA=-+MH™
AT BRREFIRE L —H
BEABRAER (BREBEBEITERD
A0 BRI A RIFMAAR R G E
FEREITRG) 2 RBEER
R - HRRAR ZZE—FF
+*ﬂ*+ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ¥%7ﬁ5£
it - W T —FF+_H
—EITﬁF@HTrJ—_Efé’i)& HEFB
NN

(@ HBH_TEHREREEEE
0.10cEa A —REKR®E
B/8%2.007T 26 PHR% 1D

(b) BEBRFHEHERE RN
& ARBEE1997T - m,@z
EHBOZEBRER
& A% T B 7S #2.007T 8
Z2HEE00ITT KABR
HEAE0.0I T ZEAE
B - RIFEA B BB %
THRAHE  A2FE
17 % A8 593,930,964
7t (F1939,309,640% & &
HEEAK0107T L @mKkA
) Bl RS 93,461,309
JTE B 469,655 T (A
46,965,482 % & ix M B /5
0.0 T mARAE ) ¢
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re SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Br —E—FFL _H=1—HItFE

17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 17. BK(Z&
Notes: (Continued) Brat - (&)
(vii)  (Continued) (vii) (4&)

(c) the credit amount of HK$93,461,309 arising
from the capital reduction referred to in
note (vii)(b) was credited to the capital
reduction reserve account of the Company.

() B #E (vii)(b) B it Bl
B R EE Z#ERBE
93,461,3097T 5t AR A A
Bl G AN R B o A DA

The amounts in the capital reduction reserve EEZTHNBERBARAAE
account can be applied to a distributable HERMBRTAREAE
reserve of the Company at the discretion of e H—;%J}Wﬂleif%{%ﬁ%z%
the directors of the Company in accordance R NVINGN RS
with the articles of association of the (@%W%Z!S’“T%uﬂ%

Company and all applicable laws, including
elimination against the accumulated losses
of the Company. During the year, capital
reduction reserve of HK$93,461,309 had
been applied to set off against accumulated
losses pursuant to the capital reorganisation;
and

(d) sub-division of each of the authorised
but unissued share of HK$0.10 each into
ten adjusted shares of HK$0.01 each. As
a result, the authorised share capital of
the Company became HK$2,000,000,000
consisting of 200,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each.

1B) - RAFE - HIRARA
{36 45 75 193,461,309 &
RIERAEHBARIEKHEZ
SHEE R

(d) FHESKREMEEI0
TTEEBREBETRDG B
+ Sk mEEE .01
O R D o B It
KQRETEBRARE KB
#2.000,000,0007T ' H
200,000,000,0000% & A%

[ERENS Moom il
X o
(viii) At the extraordinary general meeting of the (i) RARFRZZ—ZFFNA-+HE

Company held on 24 September 2010, an ordinary
resolution was passed for issue of not less than
341,567,856 rights shares and not more than
444,038,208 rights shares of HK$0.01 each to
the qualifying shareholders at a price of HK$0.36
each on the basis of eight rights shares for
every adjusted share of HK$0.01 each held on
1 December 2010. Upon capital reorganisation
referred to in note (vii) became effective,
375,723,856 rights shares of HK$0.01 each were
issued and allotted on 23 December 2010. The
issued share capital of the Company was increased
to HK$4,226,893 consisting of 422,689,338
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu
in all respects with the then existing shares.
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18.

BB mRERWN T
For the year ended 31 December 2010
FFE A=t AUFE

RESERVES 18 {1
Company VNN
Convertible Capital
Share notes Share option reduction  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE TRRZERE BRERE HARTEG ZitER ait
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS
1 January 2010 RZE-25-F-H 269,446,763 - - 346,585,489 (333,904,331) 282,127,921
Issue of shares under RERERTRN
placements 36,055,600 - - - - 36,055,600
Issue of shares under share REERETEZORG
option scheme 3,838,400 - - - - 3,838,400
Equity-settled share-based WEREEN R
payment BER A - - 387,628 - - 387,628
Transfer to share premium RERBENEREEE
on exercise of share option RHEE 387,628 - (387,628) - - -
Issue of shares under REERETRR
rights issues 159,967,337 - - - - 159,967,337
Share issue expenses Bk EX (10,546,864) - - - - (10,546,864)
Creation of capital reduction RERAEAEEZ
feserve pursuant to the HIER A GG
capital reorganisation - - - 93461309 - 03,461,309
Capital reduction reserve set BERTEELAH
off against accumulated FAEEERZHER
losses pursuant to the
capital reorganisation - - - (93,461,309 93,461,309 -
Loss for the year and total ERBERENZE
comprehensive loss for the year BRAE - - - - (95536,704)  (95,536,704)
At 31 December 2010 R=2-BE+ZB=1-8 459,148,864 - - 346585489 (335,979,726) 469,754,627
t 1 January 2009 R-EENE-F-H 264,500,318 22,668,782 - 346,585,489 (517,882,861) 115,871,728
Conversion of convertible notes ERTEREE 8327532 (22,668,782 - - - (14,341,250)
Share ssue expenses £ (3,381,087) - - - - (3,381,087)
Creation of capital reduction RERAEREL ZHRAGE
reserve pursuant to the
capital reorganisation - - - 129487392 - 129,487,392
Capital reduction reserve set off RERTEREA
against accumulated losses hAEEREZHER
pursuant to the capital
reorganisation - - - (129,487392) 129,487,392 -
Profit for the year and total EREHRENZENREE
comprehensive income for the year - - - - 54491138 54491138
At 31 December 2009 RZEENETZF=+-8 269,446,763 - - 346,585,489 (333,904,331) 282,127,921

E-—REEBREAERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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18.

19.

FE A= AILFE

RESERVES (Continued)

Company (Continued)

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands,
share premium and capital reduction reserve subject
to the Company’s memorandum and article of
association of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders, which is subject to a solvency
test. The Company had a distributable reserve of
HK$469,754,627 as at 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$282,127,921).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
In light of the requirements of Chapter 17 of

the Listing Rules, the Company adopted a new
share option scheme on 2 May 2003 (the “Option
Scheme”). Unless otherwise cancelled or amended
subject to resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company, the Option
Scheme will remain in force for ten years from the
date of adoption. Under the Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may grant options to those
participants who, in the opinion of the Board, have
contributed or may contribute to the development
and growth of the Group and any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest. Eligible participants
of the Option Scheme include any directors and
employee of any members of the Group or any
invested entities, any consultant, adviser or agent
engaged by any member of the Group or any
invested entities and any vendor, supplier of goods
or services or customer of or to any member of the
Group or invested entities.
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B 15 4 (B K Bl R AR 2N 7 4 P] (i ok
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RARZE—ZTF+_A=+—H
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19.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
The total number of shares to be issued under the

Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any eligible individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
directors of the Company, substantial shareholder
or any of his or her associates in any one year is not
permitted: (i) to exceed 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time; and (ii) to
have an aggregate value based on the official closing
price of the Company’s share as stated in the daily
guotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant in excess of HK$5 million, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Under the Options Scheme, the options granted
may be accepted within twenty-eight days from
the date of offer upon payment of HK$1 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof by the
grantee. Options may be exercised at any time not
exceeding a period of ten years from the date on
which the share option is granted. The exercise price
is determined by the directors of the Company,
but in any event shall not less than the highest of:
(i) the official closing price of the Company’s share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of
the official closing price of the Company’s share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

19.

BRESTE (&)
REARRNEIRRELEE - BIBEER
REFT B 31T 2 IR D R BTGB E AR
NEMERFREREEITRMD Z210% ©
REARARRESERE £/ —
FREMEG E B EABER KA
BEREMBBIEZEITRET
BIIRNDBEANBEBEARGEM
BREETRND Z1% - RIEARQA]
RERELIE - R —FRAREE
MEE - FERRIEEABEA
TERNMEERCEREMES
B2EBITRETEITROEE ()
TNEBE AN BMER RS TR
m20.1% : R(NVEHZFTTHERE
FETM 2 R A AR ER KT ERT
AERRERTHBH 2 EBEAET
1S 483815 #5,000,0007T °

RIEBRESE  AEATBERT
BEEF =+ /\ B REAERE
WARNERTRBBREREZ T
BB - BRER BT BHE
TFEABERITE - TTEEHARQT
EFEER MEROAMAIGERT
Jlm@®E - (VA RR MK T HH
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19. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 19. BBRESTE (&)
(a) Movements in the Option Scheme during () BRESTEFASBIFZEWN
the year are disclosed as follows: T
Weighted
average
Asat  Granted  Exercised As at Exercise period  market price
Name of category {lanuary  during during 31 December  Exercise  Fair value at of share at date of
of participant Date of grant 010 theyear  the year 2010 price  grant date options exercise
RZ%-%% R-%-%% i3t b it:d:p
SREENER BhE®  -A-B FARR  FRGE  TZA=t-B fEE ME  BREGRR NETURE
HKS HKS HKS
i it ki
Directors of 15 January 2010 - 11,995,000 (11,995,000) - 0420 0012 15 January 0420
invested entities 01010
in aggregate 14 January
RREER B3 2020
-A+1A RV iRR:E
-A1RA
Directors of 15 October 2010 - 78400,000  (78400,000) - 0.100 0.003 15 October 0.099
invested entities 20100
In 8ggregate 14 October
BREER ES4H 2000
Director of service ~3-%F - 6,990,000 (6,990,000) - %%
provider TATEA TATEAZ
hhftER ES “5°%
TATER
- 97,385,000 (97,385,000) -
Weighted average
exercise price - HKSO4 HKS0.14 -
MEFHRE AR B0
No share options were granted, lapsed, RZEBEENFHRFE  TE
exercised or expired under the Option Scheme % I% FE AR 15 B8 AR fE 5t B B
during the financial year of 2009. o RO TSR -

9 0O ANNUAL REPORT 2010  Unity Investments Holdings Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re MR mARNT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
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19. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Fair value of share options and
assumptions
The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model has
been used to estimate the fair value of the
options. Inputs to the model are as follows:

Grant date
gl =

Volume weighted average stock ®REBHZKXE

price on grant date ANFE T 15 BB
Exercise price 1B
Risk-free rate R B M) =
Expected option period T8 H HA 4 HA ]
Expected volatility 8 HA R 08
Dividend yield R B
Option type HiEman

The expected volatility is based on the
historical average share price volatility,
adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

20. CHARGE OF ASSETS AND MARGIN
FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, margin facilities from
several regulated securities brokers were granted
to the Group which were secured by the Group’s
available-for-sale investments and investments
held for trading. As at 31 December 2010, a total
amount of HK$6,862,643 (2009: HK$2,250,809) had
been utilised against these facilities and the total
carrying amount of the available-for-sale investments
and investments held for trading charged to the
securities brokers is HK$452,339,465 (2009:
HK$270,305,431).

19.

20.

BRESTE(E)
(b) BREALERRBR

BhELREARIR—F
MEZNREERAETE - BA
BAZBIENT

15 January 2010 15 October 2010
—®-8%  -%-%f%

—Rt+&aH +tAt+ER

B#HKS0.423T BH#HKS0.0917T
B #HKS0.4207T & ¥HKS0.1007T

0.010% 0.050%
0.026 yearf 0.026 yearf
40.274% 113.152%
0.000% 0.000%
CallR B Call;Z 8

B HURIR TR BB 1 T IR E K 18
AE S YREARC AR MmEME
o] T8 B R ROR BR {F 38 2 - FREHAALB
DRBEBERSE - HEEER
ETTIERRZTEEHME -

EEEARREESEE

RZZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H %
EERBREBFELEMASEERR D
RECEE  MZREEETULREE
ZAHHERERBEEEREE
BR R-_T—ZEF+-_HA=+—H
EERAEERS HA%6,862,6437TC
(ZEZF : B2 2508097T)
MERTELHLLE 2 ATHEER
ERBEBEERECFRAREARE
#£452,339,46570 (= EF N F : &
#%270,305,4317C) °
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20. CHARGE OF ASSETS AND MARGIN 200 EEEARREEZEE (#F)
FACILITIES (Continued)
The margin facilities granted by the brokers under B EMH A - & AHennabunB T
Hennabun constituted continuing connected KL AREZREBCEEBXFE
transactions under the Listing Rules and the relevant AERS  HEAEBEHERNRFERZ
disclosures are made in the Directors’ Report of this EEeWRERN-

annual report.

21. DEFERRED TAXATION 21. EEHIE
Recognised deferred tax assets (liabilities) of FEERACELHREEE (BE)
the Group
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F _—_ZTTNhF ZEB-BF _—_TTILF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B e
Depreciation TERTEE
allowances - - (218,080) (485,653)
Tax losses IR 518 218,080 485,653 - -

Deferred tax assets EAEFLIEE B

(liabilities) (8fE) 218,080 485,653 (218,080) (485,653)
Offset deferred tax HEEERBEEE
assets and liabilities N&E& (218,080) (485,653) 218,080 485,653

Net deferred tax EEHEEE
assets (liabilities) (BfE)FE - - - _
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BE—F—FFL _A=1—HIFE

21.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 21.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

EEBLIR (&)
BT &EMEE 2 RBBELH
HEE

2010 2009

—E-Z5F —ETNF

HK$ HK$

B B

Deductible temporary differences ] 08 & b = 58 105,622 17,964

Tax losses W& EE 699,227,602 635,831,010
At 31 December R+t=—A=+—8H 699,333,224 635,848,974

Both the tax losses and the deductible temporary
differences do not expire under current tax
legislation. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these items because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the Group can utilise the benefits
therefrom.

REBERTHBAED  REEBEA
NRRERZBELRERH - ARKRK
R m A A KA e AR B L
PRAEME WA B UL FIAE
RIEERIABE °
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22. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 22. E$EMARSE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EETNF
HK$ HK$
i B
Loss before taxation Br 75 B B 1B (64,961,714) (100,618,027)
Depreciation e 2,188,206 1,487,563
Changes in fair value of listed equity IRIFIFIEEB IR E DA
investments classified under LIMERKREZARE
investments held for trading o (6,338,759) (2,849,767)
Change in fair value of unlisted FRERRAREEDZ
debt investments designated as FEMEBREZ
at fair value through profit or loss AR {EEH) (10,000,000) -
Reversal of impairment on unlisted ﬁﬁf—f tHERENERZ
debt investments classified under  3F FTEBKEE 2
available-for-sale investments LB O - (5,011,515)
Impairment of unlisted equity BREAHEERESEZ
investments classified under FEEMEREE ZRE
available-for-sale investments 8,530,916 4,401,751
Impairment of listed equity BRBAHEERESELZ
investments classified under IR EZRE
available-for-sale investments 8,765,700 -
Realised loss on disposal HERBAIHEERE
of listed equity investments ’\*EZJ: MEEREZ
classified under available-for-sale &% IR E1E
investments 26,066,323 70,448,365
Gain on redemption of unlisted BEAIHEEERESFZ
debt investments classified under  3F FHEBKEE 2
available-for-sale investments FE [ = (2,000,000) -
Equity-settled share-based payment A#Em#EE UM BEM 25X 387,628 -
Interest income F B WA (30,611) (42,306)
Interest expenses FER 1,175,010 1,288,121
Dividend income i B A (2,816,555) (4,862,346)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary ﬁ’%ﬁﬁ% Al B8 - 5,677,265
Change in working capital: LEEREH:
Financial assets at fair value LTEMBZ/D\/LME@JEE
through profit or loss ZEREE (89,160,502) (7,213,723)
Other receivables H b & UK (13,321,777) 6,851,535
Other payables and accruals Hh KRR EE R 4,838,430 2,055,313
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIT A - (5,887,591)
Cash used in operations SEFAES (136,677,705)  (34,275,362)
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23.

24,

idated Financial Statements

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 23. HEKEA A
2010 2009
—E-Z5F —ETNF
HK$ HK$
B ok
Net assets disposed of HEFEE
Investments ®E - 7,637,265
Net assets disposed of HEFEE - 7,637,265
Consideration received, ERARE (ARE M)
satisfied by cash - (1,960,000)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEWBARZEE - 5,677,265
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 24, REMHNEAE

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group had
total future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which are
payable as follows:

RZBE-FTER_ETNF+ A
=+—H AEBERETAUHEZ
KERHEARRRBNFZRERE
NRBRBEOT -

2010 2009

—E-EF —TENF

HK$ HK$

i ded 78

Within one year —FR 993,404 346,616
In the second to fifth years E_FEFRF

(both years inclusive) (BREEEWE) 463,535 320,380

1,456,939 666,996
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25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantee issued

The Company had corporate guarantee for securities
trading account maintained by one of its subsidiaries
with a broker, which were unutilised (2009: HK$Nil)
at the year end date.

The Company has not recognised any deferred
income for the corporate guarantee given in respect
of the securities trading facilities for subsidiaries as
their fair value cannot be reliably measured and their
transactions price was zero.

The directors of the Company do not consider
probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantee at 31
December 2010 and 2009.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group
The remuneration of executive directors and other
member of key management during the year are as

25.

26.

HREE
B# 2 B RE

ARBIRER—KHERRRERL
BHRCEFEEPORBELEE
KRELEBLRBB (—FENF -

JEBET) o

ERMBARZESFEEREZR
RETEASEFE MEBXHE
BRT ARATERZSBEN
R DRERERTARELTRA -

R-E—ZFEER_ZETNF+ A
Z=t+—H ARAEERBARNT
AERERMERE HESTK -

BRELRS
FEEAREERE AL ZHRH

HOTEFLREMBAREEBRALR
FAZHMEWMT -

follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$ HK$
Short-term benefits SRR R 1,632,000 1,485,000
Post-employment benefits HE N E-F =R 36,000 36,000
1,668,000 1,521,000

Further details of executive directors’ emoluments
are included in note 10(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity and debt investments, other receivables and
other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and
the policies applied by the Group to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Financial risk factors

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes
in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
utilisation of margin facilities of securities brokers.

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, if interest rates
had been 200 basis point higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the effect on the
Group’s net loss would be minimal.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for both derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 200 basis
point increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
report date. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2009.

27.

TRRABEEEERBEE

AEEZ T2 T ABBERARE
BIRE ~ MUK - BB -
ZEEBMTAZABRRNEEMER
B-HZEZeRITAEHIARNK
7N 5% B T e A AR B % LR 2 BX
REHT - EEBEREZSTER
IARRIR R B B U B B A 3B FE i o

& B E by A &
AEBRAMEREFGHMAR ZTHHEA
SETBEREBAKEZEERARESFE
LRt zZRESZEE -

RZE-EER_ETAFE+_A
=+—8  WA=EEHTBK2001E
22 mAeTEEMESEFTE - B
HASE BB FETEE /-

1 b i B 5 7 B B RSB
EHEEARINEEE  B%E
BMEHEARNE BRE 2T RE
FEeMT A2 FEmR - %L
B TH200ERE NEREHBE
A4 4R B U B A R A A A T
BEH G RAN 2 RER T
THEZ HRAR -
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

As a result of overseas investments denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD") and Singapore Dollars
("SGD"), the Group is exposed to the movement in
the HKD/USD and HKD/SGD exchange rates.

At 31 December 2010, if these currencies had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against HKD with
all other variables kept constants, the Group’s net
loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$658,000 (2009: approximately HK$540,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of those overseas
investments denominated in different currencies.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the end of reporting period and
had been applied to Group's exposure to currency
risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables remain constant, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The stated
changes in foreign currency represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
report date. In this respect, it is assumed that the
pegged rate between HKD and USD would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of USD against other currencies. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2009.
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of short-term borrowings and utilisation of
margin facilities of securities brokers. The Group
will keep reviewing its financial needs from time to
time to determine the timing of obtaining various
borrowings or carrying out fund raising activities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's
and the Company’s other payables and accruals
of HK$7,414,264 and HK$502,621 (2009:
HK$2,575,834 and HK$286,025) were due on
demand.

Price risk

Certain of the Group’s available-for-sale investments
and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value at each reporting
period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity
and debt securities price risk. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different profiles both in Hong
Kong and overseas. The sensitivity analysis has
been determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk. At the reporting date, if the fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
had been 5% higher/lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s net loss would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$6,732,000
(2009: decreasel/increase by approximately
HK$1,457,000).

27.

TREAREEREREEK (&)

ETREREEE)
AEEBIRERE BN MEHERK
PRESKLRRECREREES
CTETHEMLEELME ZEERFF
& - REBK TIRRAMBEREE - A
REDGEEERNETRE LD
Z I o

RESREAERE - AEBERARFZ
B RETERRBET7,414,2647T
N A #502,621 0 (ZEENF : F
M2 575,8347T K B 1286,0257T)

REREEE -

B E B
AEEZAETAHOEEREREBR
BEaZ A AnBIRs2EREELRS
WEBHBZAREFE - Eit - K
SEERERANEBEZELFERR
% o BIREREEZERNE B LEINEFA
ETARERcZEEAEERELER
% o MRE DT BB R AEIKE
BRfEN - RS BH - WERBRIE
NABEIRZEMEEZ AREE
n/RA5% - META HAth B B i
o RAEBE 2 BEBEFEBR D
1N 4975 166,732,000 (= EF
JUIF 2 i B4 B 1,457,000
JT) °
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Price risk (Continued)

Whereas, if the fair value of available-for-sale
investments had been 5% higher/lower with all
other variables remain unchanged, the Group’s
changes in equity will increase/decrease by
approximately HK$15,885,000 (2009: increase/
decrease by approximately HK$12,940,000). The
Group's sensitivity to equity price has not changed
significantly from the prior year.

Credit risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to credit
risk for all financial assets that counterparties in a
transaction may default on settlement. The Group
has no specific policy in managing its credit risk,
as the Group’s other financial assets are amounts
due from securities brokers and bank balances
which default risks are insignificant. The Group's
investments in unlisted debt securities are stated at
fair value with reference to the market value of the
underlying shares.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had a concentration of credit risk as 98% (2009:
92%) of the total amount due from the Company’s
largest subsidiary.

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to provide returns for
shareholders. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments, including
payment of dividend to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio, which is net debt divided by
adjusted capital. The Group’s policy is to keep the
ratio within 10%. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios
at the statement of financial position date were as
follows:

TRERERERFERBE(E)

EXEHE(E)
AEBREBHERHBER L X (A
EHFEGRAREREER) BT E
Ko REBZBRB/ERL @R
EI10%HIAT - REE B 2 EHH
RABEARLERWT

2010 2009

—E-=F —ETNF

HK$ HK$

ik B

Other payables H At B 5K 6,862,643 2,250,809
Less: Cash balance maintained B ERREZEEER

with brokers (13,350,188) (23)

Less: Bank balances and cash B RTETERRS (3,851,951) (6,359,142)

Net receivable & W FF RE (10,339,496) (4,108,356)

Total equity mrEm 473,981,496 296,515,394

Less: Net unrealised reserves B RN EE TR (5.036,443)  (35,611,442)

Adjusted capital 43 BB AN 468,945,053 260,903,952

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio ERHEHAEE R R

Not applicable Not applicable
FEH T iE A

Fair value

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts
of financial instruments approximate their fair value
and accordingly no separate disclosure of the fair
value of these items are presented.

RERTEZEREEREER
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value (Continued)

The fair value of listed securities included in
available-for-sale investments and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is based on the
quoted market bid prices available on the relevant
stock exchange.

Certain unlisted securities included in available-for-
sale investments are stated at fair value after the
carrying amounts are determined to be impaired.

The fair value of unlisted debt securities included
in financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale financial assets is arrived
by using Binomial Tree Pricing Model. Details of
the valuation are disclosed in note 15(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair value disclosures

The following presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at 31 December
2010 across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments;

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data;

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. *REKREEEERBER (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value BRAREFHEZEE
The Group The Company
xEH Y NG|
Level 1
Level 1 Level 2 Total and total
£-E -y B E-EREH
HK$ HKS HKS HK$
B B B ok
Financial assets at EREGEAANBIR
fair value through LERMEE
profit or loss
Listed equity IhERRE
investments 89,946,293 - 89,946,293 13,156,000
Unlisted debt FLEMEBKERE
investments - 44,701,600 44,701,600 -
Available-for-sale AEERE
investments
Listed equity ThERRE
investments 314,091,572 - 314,091,572 -
Unlisted debt FLEMEBRE
investments - 3,600,000 3,600,000 -

404,037,865 48,301,600 452,339,465 13,156,000

During the year ended 31 December 2010, there RE&z-—_s—S&+-_F=+—8H
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair \FEE Iéﬂiﬁﬁ BRE_EBAH
value measurements, and no transfers into and out BEiHEEMNER BEE=-FN
of Level 3 fair value measurements. hEHEEAREL -
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Financial Summary

AT &R
e E
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-%3F _TTHhNFE ZZEN\F ZET+tE —TERF
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$
ik ki B B B
Results Ef
Turnover (Restated) BER(HES)) (29,978,152)  (16,039,273)  (6,334,669)  (91,529,295) 28,823,065
(Loss) Profit for the year ER(HE) & (64,961,714)  (100,618,027)  (458,429,088)  (98,995,641) 12,204,259
Taxation T - - - - -
(Loss) Profit attributable KRAERREAA
to equity holders of the Company et (B18)aH  (64,961,714) (100,618,027) (458,429,088)  (98,995,641) 12,204,259
Assets and liabilities BERAE
Total assets BEBE 481,395,760 299,091,228 185,081,654 447,924,232 225,294,435
Total liabilities HELEE (7,414,264)  (2,575,834)  (31,630,802)  (31,123,296)  (13,033,169)
Total equity B 473,981,496  296,515394 153,450,852 416,800,936 212,261,266
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